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CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter
referred to as “CCMGT” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as the “Group”, stock code:
9982.HK) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 22 October
2020 as an exempt company with limited liability, the shares of
which were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 31 May 2021.

The project management business of the Group is primarily carried
out by Henan Zhongyuan Central China City Development Co., Ltd.*
(“Zhongyuan Jianye”) and Zhongyuan Central China (Hainan)
Management Services Co., Ltd.* (“Zhongyuan Jianye (Hainan)”),
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Group’s main
business is commercial project management and is expanding in
government project management, capital project management, and
special management consulting services.

Over the past six years since the establishment, the Group has been
adhering to the principle of “Good People and Good Land” and the
cooperation philosophy of “Alignment in Culture, Strategy, Standard
and Execution”. The productive cooperation has been widely
recognized by the clients. Starting in 2021, the Group has expanded
its business to cover the Greater Central China region within a
radius of 500 kilometers, with Zhengzhou as the centre. This region
offers huge market opportunities for the Group to grow and prosper.
Guided by the “Greater Central China” strategy, the Group will
continuously improve its core competitiveness and keep expanding
its presence in provinces other than Henan to increase its market
share in China’s project management market while consolidating its
overwhelmingly leading position in Henan. As an outstanding
enterprise in China’s project management industry, the Group aims
to transform itself into an industry leader.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had 261 projects under
management in 119 cities and counties in 7 provinces and
autonomous regions, including Henan, Shaanxi, Shanxi, Anhui,
Hebei, Xinjiang, and Hainan, with an aggregate gross floor area
(“GFA”) of 30,974,377 square metre (“sq.m”) under management.
Due to the refined full process of project management, the Group is
capable of sharing advantageous resources, risks and benefits with
partners and contributing to the urbanization process.
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MAJOR EVENTS
SEARERT

18 March 2021

Zhongyuan Jianye was honoured as one of the “Outstanding Companies in China for
Real Estate Project Management Operations” by China Index Academy.

2021463 418H PRERKEPEARRBEN [TEFMEREEFTELLE] -
=
i i R
P BT R AR A
FAR2020 | H P RALEER S R
31 May 2021 The shares of the Company officially got listed on the Main Board of The Stock
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Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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MAJOR EVENTS
EEAER

15 September 2021 Zhongyuan Jianye was honoured a “2021 Leading Brand of China Real Estate Agent-
Construction Companies” by China Index Academy.
202149 A15H IR R ER IR AR (2021 B EMEREELERE]
£ .
L=
Ag “ (:ER'FIFI(:ATEE %@ﬁ
o 5 47 A 4 LT LR 543
"'T'Iﬁi;;;"zozlrrIﬂWl&Fltﬂ!ﬁé&.‘.ﬁﬁ?"
RULRY i ] ffi: A
November 2021 The Company was awarded “Listed Enterprises of the Year 2021” by Bloomberg
Businessweek.
202111 H
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Listed Enterprises
of the Year
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AWARDS AND HONOURS
RIERKE

The Group won six awards in 2021, of which four from capital N8 E20214F HEF /NIE A58 Hr 18 A& K
markets and the other two for industry: IS 4818 - IR BT 42IR

Listed Enterprises of the Year 2021 (Bloomberg Businessweek/
Chinese Edition)

The Company was awarded “Listed Enterprises of the Year 2021”

A at the sixth “Listed Enterprises of the Year 2021” campaign held by

Bloomberg Businessweek/Chinese Edition in November 2021 in
E:‘E;‘T':%;Z&“* recognition of its business strength, corporate development
5;5[‘;?95"5859; strategy, sustainable development and corporate social

responsibility, etc.

Listed Enterprises
of the Year

The “Listed Enterprises of the Year 2021” award is organised
by the internationally renowned business media Bloomberg
B s gionent Businessweek/Chinese Edition. The award selection is based on a
Company Limited comprehensive analysis, selection and scoring of the participating
09982.HK companies from eight categories, namely performance, corporate
governance, investor relations, corporate strategy, corporate social
responsibility, sustainable development, innovation and change,
and risk management.

HrEm %2021 (ZEHERT] P XR)

AAFRCAFMAR (EEEERTH R EHMNENEF
B Em{d%2021] EEH - LB [F E 32021 8 URE QA
EEBREN CEBRRE NHERERCEMSEAEHHE
BERSTE-

[FEEMAE22021 | BRERBBENZNEEER (EHERER
H iRy 2 SIEFTERNEERR  CEER REEBFR.
TERE CEMSET AIFEER AFEERARKREELN
AEBHDBOEETEALDT HERTD -
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AWARDS AND HONOURS
RIERKE

Most Promising IPOs in 2021 (SEEC Media, Xindichan.com.cn
and Caijing.com.cn)

SEEC Media, Xindichan.com.cn and Caijing.com.cn held the 17th
China Real Estate & Finance Annual Forum cum the 3rd Urban
Development Strategy Summit in Beijing on 16 December. With its
excellent performance and strong development potential, the
Company was awarded the “Most Promising IPOs in 2021”.

M1FERABEHIPORZE| (B ERER PEMLE B
)

12168 R EREE MEME FEBHRAIRN(E
THEFEMESRFEEE BT ERBBRERE] £
REIT-ARFBEBENFERRNABDOBRE S - 51 [2021
FEKAENIPOLE | M-

ListCo Excellence Awards 2021 (am730 and Finance.ifeng.com)

The Company was awarded the “ListCo Excellence Awards 2021”
in December, proving that the Company has been recognised by
the commercial circles and investment industry for its outstanding
performance. The “ListCo Excellence Awards 2021” was co-
organised by Hong Kong media am730 and fully supported by
Hong Kong stock channel of iFeng.com, a renowned media in
Mainland China. In addition, Deloitte China became the intellectual
partner for this year’'s awards.

B 2 R K 382021 (AM730 % Bl E A8 81 4% )

ADF2A B R BB IE (am730) 3 MBI KA (B
BB 2 %% 3 o (8% E Deloitte fEE 8 11 2 (R 0
[ BB ARAR2021]  REDAKELR HEBRRRER
LR
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AWARDS AND HONOURS
RIERKE

Welbamil
AT SRR

LISTED COMPANY
= 202 AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE

— e

hEREHRAS
Central China Management

Gompany Limited
(09982)

Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2021 (Hong Kong
Economic Journal)

The award presentation ceremony of the “Listed Company Awards
of Excellence 2021” organised by Hong Kong Economic Journal
was rounded off in December. The Company won the award for the
first time. The winners of the same period include 34 Hong Kong-
listed companies such as Bank of China (Hong Kong), Cheung
Kong Holdings, New World Development, Sun Hung Kai Properties
and Yuexiu Property.

Lt A FE A E2021(Z5)

BMEE (EMMAHE) M [ EH QR S #AR2021] 7885
BI2ABERSET AR ERREZRIE - FARESZEANER
RIREFR RIBER HURBR HBEME BFHEFMUR
EEELTHRR

Zhongyuan Jianye was honoured as one of the “Outstanding
Companies in China for Real Estate Project Management
Operations in 2021” at the Press Conference for Research
Findings of Top 100 Real Estate Companies in China held by China
Index Academy in the first half of 2021.

2021 EHFHAEPERERN [FTEFETRDETFITARE
hgld PREZLE 021TPEEHEREELESOE]
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AWARDS AND HONOURS
RIERKE

2021 Leading Brand of China Real Estate Agent-Construction

Companies (China Enterprise Evaluation Association, Institute of
Real Estate Studies of Tsinghua University, China Index Academy,
etc.)

A = %
*@,nﬂ = '@"‘ W

CERTIFICATE
—oe—

o 5 3 7 5 RO (LR 5 AR 5
c hinw Real Extate Brand Value

R BT UL i A TS APTAATAURR A AR S0

e The Press Conference for Research Findings of Real Estate Brand
Value in China cum the 18th China Real Estate Brand Development
Summit was organised by China Enterprise Evaluation Association,
Institute of Real Estate Studies of Tsinghua University and China

Index Academy, and co-organised by the Academy’s China Real

Estate Top10 Research Group in Beijing on 15 September 2021.
With the increased brand value under the development of its
professional asset-light agent construction model, the Group was
honoured as a “2021 Leading Brand of China Real Estate Agent-
Construction Companies”.

221 EEEREALRE (TEEXFNERS BEREF
ERFTRT - TR F

2021F9R15H B BECEFERS BEAEEMEREA
R EEERMAERRED Lt TP EESRTHER+TEE
7 TOP10F 75 48 74 3 69 [ 202170 B 5= b E o R (B (B BT 75 ok R 3%

SEBET)\ETBREHEREERSERE] T REERM-
AEBREFENTEEREZRAMARLE  REEEBSREA
LAME (2021 B R AE R ELE L TR -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRE

CHAIRMAN’'S
STATEMENT

FERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
hereby present the consolidated results and business overview of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”) and
the outlook for future development.

2021 was a tough year. Under the continuous regulation, the real
estate industry has undergone big changes. The industry has
entered into the era of “management dividend” as fault tolerance
rate is reduced, differentiation is intensified, and the consolidation of
the industry is accelerated.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAF
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Under such severe circumstances, the Company was listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 31 May 2021, whereby the
Company raised the work standards, standardised the corporate
governance practices, and performed full process fine project
management after being listed. In the Year, the Group outperformed
in four core operational indicators, namely, investment expansion,
contracted sales, management service fees and net profit.

With respect to performance results, the Group had 261 projects
under management as of 31 December 2021, with an aggregate
GFA of 30,974,377 sq. m. The contracted sales of projects under
management amounted to RMB7,284 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 15.1%. The contracted sales GFA amounted to
1,027,912 sq. m., representing a year-on-year increase of 4.7%.
Revenue was RMB1.3 billion, representing a year-on-year growth of
13.0%. Net profit for the Year increased 13.0% year-on-year to
RMB770 million, with a net profit margin of 59.2%.

In 2021, the Group had 87 newly contracted projects, representing a
year-on-year increase of 8.8%, with newly contracted GFA increased
16.7% year-on-year to 10,021,905 sq.m. The Group had 11 newly
contracted projects in provinces other than Henan (including
provinces and autonomous regions such as Anhui, Shanxi, Shaanxi,
Hebei, Xinjiang and Hainan), representing a year on-year increase
of 10.0%, with newly contracted GFA increased 40.0% year-on-year
to 1,302,742 sq.m.

CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
ER|E
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRE

Behind the excellent performance results is the Group’s move to
improve “fundamental abilities” under the era of management
dividends. From the perspective of business development, the
Group focused on commercial project management and
strengthened the innovative research and exploration on
government project management and capital project management.
From the perspective of marketing, all employees are responsible
for marketing and the Group put forward the innovative idea of
“‘graded marketing” to help achieve marketing goals. From the
perspective of products, oriented by product power, the Group made
constant efforts to develop and launch new product series, with
which the Group won 15 design awards throughout the Year. From
the perspective of services, the Group operated in a customer-
centric manner, which achieved steady and rising customer
satisfaction, and explored a satisfaction survey system under the
asset-light model. The Group’s asset-light business model has been
fully recognized by the market and industry.

Moving forward, according to China Index Academy report, the
penetration rate of the project management industry was 4.8% in
2021. Compared to the United State’s and Europe’s project
management industry penetration rate of 20% to 30%, China’s
project management industry penetration has room to further grow
up to 5.2 times. The penetration rate of project management industry
in China is still at a low level and the prospect for further growth is
promising.

As the main foundation for the development of the Group, the
Greater Central China region covers eight provinces, including
Henan, Anhui, Shanxi, Shaanxi, Hebei, Jiangsu, Shandong and
Hubei, with a population of 430 million. The GDP in the region
accounts for 1/4 of the total in China. The Greater Central China
region has high population density, rapid economic growth, low
urbanization rate and uneven development. With the release of the
State Council’'s “Guideline on Promoting High-quality Development
of the Country’s Central Region in the New Era” in 2021 and other
related policies, a large number of national strategies unleashed the
benefits and huge market demands. The Greater Central China
region is expected to become an important growth driver for China’s
economy in the future.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HREEERAT
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Deeply rooted in the Greater Central China region, the Group has
seen improving comprehensive capabilities, rising brand influence,
consolidated presence in Henan market and the Group’s confidence
is growing. Apart from commercial project management, the Group
has steadily expanded in government project management, capital
project management and management consulting services.

Guided by the “Greater Central China” strategy, the Group will
continuously improve the management capabilities, raise the
threshold for competition, strengthen the barriers of competition, and
turn the brand advantage into market advantage and value creation
advantage.

| would like to express my sincere gratitude to all employees for their
hard work and dedication. In an era full of challenges, the trust and
recognition from customers, employees and Shareholders have
always been encouraging us to move forward and motivate us to
create greater value for partners and Shareholders.

CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
ER|E
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

SUMMARY OF INCOME STATEMENT YR E
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020 Changes
20214 20204 k)
Increase/
RMB’000 RMB’000 (decrease)
AR®T T AR¥FIT Em ORd)
Revenue WA 1,301,449 1,152,082 13.0%
Net profit F A E 770,155 681,470 13.0%
Core net profit* 20 F R 784,938 689,306 13.9%
Net profit margin FAEE 59.2% 59.2% -
Basic and diluted earnings per share & & &L 7 & 5% 2 F|
(RMB cents) (AR D) 24.39 2297 6.2%
Total dividend per ordinary share BREBRBRE
(HK cents) (A 18.50 - N/A 73 3
* excluding the listing expenses and the related tax effect. * TRELTHRY REERIEEE-
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL B EAR R R
POSITION
As at 31 December
M12B31H
2021 2020 Changes
20214 20204 o
Increase/
RMB’000 RMB’000 (decrease)
AR®T ARBFIT Em ORd)
Total cash and cash equivalents ReMReSEWRE 1,975,806 384,599 413.7%
Total assets BEE 2,895,031 1,675,051 72.8%
Total liabilities waE 575,402 667,659 (13.8)%
Total equity B 2,319,629 1,007,392 130.3%

16 CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW

Business Overview

In 2021, as the Group’s major market, Henan, was affected by
flood and the COVID pandemic (the “Pandemic”), the overall
real estate industry was affected by various factors including
tightening macro policies and industry regulations, while the
Group’s operations maintained a healthy level in general with
high year-on-year increase of new expansion area, contracted
sales, net profit and net profit margin as compared to the
previous year, which fully demonstrated the competitive edge
of the project management business.

During the Year, the Group had 87 newly contracted projects,
representing a year-on-year increase of 8.8%. The newly
contracted GFA was 10,021,905 sg.m, representing a year-on-
year increase of 16.7%, and the contracted sales for projects
under the Group’s management amounted to RMB40,275
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 17.4%. The
contracted sales GFA was 6,261,669 sq.m, representing a
year-on-year increase of 9.8%, ranking the first in the industry.
As of 31 December 2021, 261 projects were under the Group’s
management with an aggregate GFA of 30,974,377 sq.m.
During the Year, the Group had 11 newly contracted projects in

BEEENWE D

20215F ERAKRE T EMSMAEE KL
BREZIABRFABEHARE ([HE])F
2 BERFEHETSXIEZERRWE 17
XHAREZERZNTE FAEHERL
BENRL FREE GREE FH
B OENEEREREFRADRERS A
iR AR TRERBES-

RAFE AEENEREEBS7E " FLt
#RE8.8% MLANELMBE([ZFM
#1)10,021,905F /5 K » B 12 £16.7% °
EHfh AEELEEEENANHESSE
402.75(B 70 FILLER17.4% A O HER
£ATH 756,261,669 5 2K » Al LL 3 K 9.8% -
ITERREE—-EFHE20214128318
ANEBAEEHEB261E EEHEE ZEAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWRDN

provinces other than Henan with a newly contracted GFA of
1,302,742 sq.m. As of 31 December 2021, the Group had
conducted business in 119 cities and counties, including 100
cities and counties in Henan and 19 cities and counties in
provinces other than Henan.

The business scale increased continuously. As of 31
December 2021, the Group had a more diversified business
model and had six government project management projects
with a contracted GFA of 790,000 sq.m, and one capital project
management project with a contracted GFA of 200,000 sg.m.

Macro Environment

In 2021, the first year of recovery from the Pandemic, China’s
GDP grew by 8.1% year-on-year with stable progress in
China’s overall economy. Due to the strong resilience of its
economy, China overperformed other major global economies
in this respect, which created a positive and favourable
environment for business development, despite the base
effect, floods, the recurrent Pandemic and other factors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Guided by the policies that “houses are for accommodation,
not for speculation” and three goals of “stabilising land prices,
house prices and market expectations”, China continued to
impose strict policies to regulate the real estate industry in
2021. In the 2022 Economic Work Conference, the central
government of China proposed new requirements for the real
estate industry that “it shall explore new development models,
place equal emphasis on house rental and acquisition,
accelerate the development of housing for long-term rent, and
promote the construction of indemnificatory housing”, and
encouraged that “cities shall facilitate virtuous circle and
healthy development of the real estate industry based on their
actual circumstances”. In general, these policies are conducive
to making the industry “back on track” to achieve the
fundamental target of “affordable houses for all people”, and
also help recover people’s confidence in the real estate
industry gradually through the policy of “stable development”.

Project Management Market

As the real estate industry enters the favourable era for project
management business, the traditional development logic of the
industry has changed. As a vital model in the transformation of
ecological chain of the industry, the project management
business is gradually on the market’s radar for its features
such as being asset-light, not driven by capital and with low
leverage, no reliance on financing, high profit margin as well
as being counter-cyclical.

In connection with the national and provincial “14th Five-Year”
Plan, the supply of real estate industry had a more definite
reform direction: promoting the construction of indemnificatory
rental housing and urban renewal may become a trend.
Meanwhile, under the accelerating integration of markets, the
demand for small-to-medium project management businesses
will gradually increase. According to China Index Academy, the
penetration of the project management industry reached 4.8%
in 2021. Compared to the United State’s and Europe’s project
management industry penetration of approximately 30%,
China’s project management industry penetration has room to
further grow up to 5.2 times. The overall industry has a
promising prospect.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In 2021, Zhongyuan Jianye (the Group’s principal operating
subsidiary) was honoured as one of the “Outstanding
Companies in China for Real Estate Project Management
Operations in 2021” and “2021 Leading Brand of China Real
Estate Project Management” by China Index Academy. This
shows the asset-light business model of the Group has been
well recognised in the market.

“Greater Central China” Strategy

On July 2021, the State Council published the “Opinion on the
Promotion of High-Quality Development of Central China in
New Era of the State Council of the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China”, proposing 21 measures to
facilitate the growth of Central China region. In 2021, the
Group has officially initiated the “Greater Central China”
strategy to carry out project management business in the
Greater Central China region within a radius of 500 kilometres,
with Zhengzhou as the centre. This region offers huge market
opportunities and the “Greater Central China” strategy of the
Group is also in line with the development strategy of China in
Central China, which allows the Group to grow and prosper. In
2021, the Group organized different activities for “Central
China Tours for Medias in Provinces other than Henan”, such
as introducing the Group’s projects in Central China to the
media of Anhui province, a reverse roadshow for Anhui media
and an online event for Hubei media, which facilitated the
promotion of the Group’s brand in the markets in provinces
other than Henan and effectively supported the business
development in these provinces. Looking forward, the Group
will keep implementing the “Greater Central China” strategy. In
addition to exploiting markets in Henan, the Group will explore
and achieve greater breakthrough in business in the Greater
Central China region.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Future Business Plan and Strategy

In 2022, guided by the “Greater Central China” strategy, the
Group will continue to enhance ability of “full process refined
project management”, improve the core competitiveness, take
bold initiative to explore and adopt an aggressive approach to
further expand the Group’s business in provinces other than
Henan and increase market share in China’s project
management market while further consolidating the Group’s
overwhelmingly leading position in Henan. In 2022, the Group
will focus on the following key strategies and plans:
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1.  Achieve new breakthroughs in business 1

expansion into provinces other than Henan

First, the Group will deeply enhance the research in
markets other than Henan, in particular in the Greater
Central China region, to form replicable experience.
Second, the Group will gradually formulate a standard
for the management and control of project operation in
local markets in accordance with actual circumstances in
different markets outside Henan, to promote the project
operation outside Henan from a more objective
perspective. Third, the Group will enhance support for
the investment team in terms of personnel allocation and
incentive by improving policy protection mechanism
outside Henan. Fourth, the Group will facilitate the brand
marketing and project execution outside Henan. Fifth,
the Group will cultivate quality partners based on the
principle of “classification and grade management for
partners” to jointly use resources outside Henan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Facilitate the diversified development of
business model

First, the Group will deepen research on business layout
in higher-tier cities, and on various forms of properties
including residential products in order to develop
capabilities for comprehensive project management
services aimed at all property categories within five
years. Second, the Group will gradually establish mature
business models for government project management
and capital project management with financial
institutions, asset companies, and government
investment platforms. Third, the Group will effectively
sort out and integrate resources of existing partners to
build an alliance of investors. The Group seeks to
develop a platform for project management with capital
contribution that is distinctive of the Group and satisfies
development needs of the asset-light industry.

Constantly facilitate cost reduction, quality
improvement and efficiency enhancement

First, the Group will constantly improve project
effectiveness and per capita efficiency through full
implementation of “full process refined project
management”. Second, the Group will keep boosting
product innovation and improving product quality, and it
also advocates innovation that caters to the market and
restricted by costs. Third, the Group will enhance the
promotion and application of new materials, technologies
and craftmanship, and improve the systematization and
standardization of project management.

Actively explore and promote digital and
intelligent construction

The digital and intelligent construction is the key to the
improvement of management efficiency. The Group
continues to construct and upgrade systems, and
improve decision-making efficiency by leveraging on
digitalised technologies. Also, the Group will deeply
analyse and explore customers’ information based on
the digital and intelligent method, and innovate product
research and improve customer services level in
accordance with customers’ needs. Furthermore, the
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VL.

Group will keep improving refined management and
accumulating management experience based on existing
full process refined project management practices,
speed up digital and intelligent construction for the
Group’s wider operations and explore the establishment
of its “Digital SaaS Platform for Project Management
Services”.

5. Enhance the standards for internal control and
compliance

To ensure its business’s sustainability, the Group, as a
leader in the project management industry, will continue
to explore management methods, which also set more
strict requirements for compliance. First, the Group will
comprehensively sort out and improve various
management systems and files, and practically improve
the compliance of various tasks. Second, the Group will
strengthen business research, clearly sort out the rights
and responsibilities of all parties in the project
cooperation process, and clarify business regulations
and management boundaries. Third, the Group will
conduct compliance-related business trainings with
business partners to jointly improve compliance
awareness and to maintain high standards.

OUTLOOK

In the favourable era for project management business, the
traditional real estate industry has already stepped into the
stage of relying on existing resources, and the development of
the real estate development sector is gradually facing
limitation. The project management industry, however, has a
great potential and promising outlook with high net profit
margin. Based on the “full process refined project management
systems”, the Group continues to enhance fundamental
management ability, diversify business models, enhance
product and service standard and forge core competitiveness,
to be the leading enterprise in the property management
industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

For the Year, the Group achieved:
Revenue

The Group generated revenue and received management fees from
the provision of project management services. Principal factors
affecting revenue include the business size, number of projects
under management and total contracted GFA, milestones and
progress of projects under management as well as the sale
strategies. During the Year, revenue amounted to RMB1,301.4
million, representing an increase of 13.0% from RMB1,152.1 million
in 2020. The revenue increased primarily due to an increase in the
number of projects under management and total contracted GFA
under management. Below is the Group’s revenue divided by
whether projects under management are based in Henan Province:
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For the year ended 31 December

BE12AMBLEE
2021 2020 Changes
20215 20205 25
% of % of Increase/
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue (decrease)
AR®TR HUWAEAE ARETT GRAESL &N/ (RD)
Projects in Henan Province AmEEE 1,208,028 92.8% 1,112,711 96.6% 8.6%
Projects outside Henan Province [0 8 & IMIIE B 93,421 7.2% 39,371 3.4% 137.3%
Total CEl 1,301,449 100.0% 1,152,082 100.0% 13.0%
Other Income H g A

Other income is primarily interest income on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. During the Year, other income was
RMB34.9 million, an increase of RMB29.1 million from RMB5.8
million in 2020. The increase was mainly due to an increase in
interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost by
RMB27.6 million as compared to that in 2020.

HBW AT ZRZEBERTTENSREEN
FEWA -RAEFEAN - EMA BARE3I49
AEIL B2020F M ARBS8EELIEMAR
¥E20 1E BT 18N = B R AL # IHAK NG
EMSRE EEENF B UL A 20204 3 i A
R¥216E BT

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
RO -FFR

25



26

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

Personnel Cost

Personnel cost is the Group’s largest cost item which primarily
comprises base salary and bonus, social insurance and other
benefits as well as equity-settled shared-based payments by Central
China Real Estate Limited (previously the holding company of the
Group) paid to the Group’s employees. Such cost does not include
salary, bonus, social insurance and housing provident funds, and
other benefits and fees paid to the Group’s employees who are
seconded to relevant project companies in connection with real
property development projects managed by us, which are borne by
respective project owners and paid by the project owners to the
seconded personnel directly. During the Year, personnel cost
amounted to RMB196.9 million, representing an increase of 16.9%
from RMB168.5 million in 2020. Personnel cost increased primarily
due to a rise in the number of employees deployed for larger GFA
under management.

Listing Expenses

Listing expenses primarily comprise professional fees paid to
external financial, legal and reporting accountants in connection with
the Company’s Listing. During the Year, listing expenses amounted
to RMB19.7 million, representing 1.5% of revenue.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses primarily comprise corporate overhead
and business, office and travelling expenses. During the Year, other
operating expenses amounted to RMB72.3 million, a surge of 87.7%
from RMB38.5 million in 2020. The increase was mainly because of
the increased business, office and travelling expenses due to (i) the
increased number of employees deployed for larger GFA under
management; (ii) fewer restrictions on business travel under the
Pandemic compared with 2020; and (iii) the addition of other
operating expenses, i.e. licensing fee of RMB8.8 million.

Income Tax

During the Year, income tax expense amounted to RMB242.7
million, representing an increase of 5.1% from RMB230.9 million in
2020. The effective income tax rate was 24.0%, down 1.3
percentage points from the effective tax rate of 25.3% in 2020. The
decline is mainly due to the fact that the Group’s subsidiary,
Zhongyuan Jianye (Hainan), enjoyed the 15% corporate income tax
rate in 2021 because of the preferential policy as it was registered in
Hainan Free Trade Port (the “Hainan FTP”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit for the Year

During the Year, net profit amounted to RMB770.2 million,
representing an increase of 13.0% from RMB681.5 million in 2020.
After excluding listing expenses and the related tax effect, the core
net profit for the Year amounted to RMB784.9 million, representing a
growth of 13.9% from RMB689.3 million in 2020.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables amounted to RMB568.2 million as of 31
December 2021, representing a decrease of 44.2% from
RMB1,017.3 million as of 31 December 2020. This was mainly
attributable to the receipt of the amount due from related parties of
RMB843.2 million as well as advances to project owners of
RMB317.6 million, which cooperated with the Group in investing and
developing projects outside Henan Province during the Year. The
balance of trade receivables rose from RMB142.0 million as of 31
December 2020 to RMB198.3 million as of 31 December 2021, up
39.7%, primarily due to an increase in the projects under
management and business expansion.

Contract Assets

Contract assets amounted to RMB300.5 million as of 31 December
2021, representing an increase of 26.2% from RMB238.1 million as
of 31 December 2020. It is primarily due to an increase in the
projects under management and a longer development cycle of
projects. Contract assets will be converted into the cash inflow from
the Group’s operating activities in the future.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables amounted to RMB128.3 million as of 31
December 2021, representing an increase of 12.6% from RMB113.9
million as of 31 December 2020. It is primarily due to an increase in
service fees collected on behalf of the related parties for the
provision of property management services to the Group’s
customers.

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities amounted to RMB393.2 million as of 31
December 2021, representing a decrease of 17.2% from RMB474.9
million as of 31 December 2020. It is primarily due to an increase in
recognising revenue during the Year that was included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the Year.
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Proceeds from the Listing

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong (the “Listing”) on 31 May 2021 (the “Listing Date”),
with a total of 328,172,000 Shares issued pursuant to the Global
Offering. After deducting the underwriting fees and relevant
expenses, net proceeds from the Listing amounted to approximately
HK$915.8 million (equivalent to RMB751.4 million). The following
table sets out the intended use and actual use of the net proceeds
as of 31 December 2021:

Allocation of Percentage
use of the net of total net
Use of proceeds proceeds proceeds

Fri&E CENES
RE REFE

LT RERE

% F2021F5 8318 (L B#BI)XKIIES
B RAER LM (L) - RBERKEE
B 3174 $£328,172,0008% i 15 - 5k 22 35 &
FMABASZE ETWABSRIEFEL A915.8H
EBT (HERARKEISIA4EET) - TRIIR
HE2021F12A31HGBRIBFENET AR
MEB AR

Unutilised

Actual use  net proceeds

as of as at

31 December 31 December
2021 2021 Timetable

R20215

Bz20215 12A318

128318 ABH

HER i)iEEd

FERERE AERAR MBS ERABR HEEE KB
RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEET AREEET AR%BER
1. Expanding into new markets in the 300.5 40.0% 121 288.4
“Greater Central China” region and
new service offerings
RRE KRR BT 5N RS
1.1 Setting up of new regional branch offices 75.1 10.0% 1.6 73.5 One to three years
FUHNEH S AT after Listing
FHR-E=F
1.2 Recruitment of new staffs to new branches 180.4 24.0% 9.1 171.3 One to three years
BEMNTDRERENES after Listing
ITHRE-E=F
1.3 Brand promotion 22.5 3.0% 0.3 22.2 One to three years
iR HEE after Listing
THR-E=F
14 Recruitment of new staffs and efforts in 225 3.0% 11 214 One to three years
developing new service offerings (including after Listing
both government projects and capital projects) Ik —==%

REMEELBNREMRERL (BRK

fiEE REARER)

2, Pursuing strategic investments and 270.6 36.0% - 270.6 One to three years
acquisitions after Listing
ETHERRENYUE IThk-2=F

3. Enhancing the information technology 105.2 14.0% 25 102.7 One to three years
system after Listing
NEREERERS THR-E=F

4, General working capital 751 10.0% 37.5 37.6 One to two years after
-REELES Listing

IHE-EZF
Total # 5t 751.4 100.0% 52.1 699.3
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Resources Management and Capital Structure

The Group has adopted comprehensive treasury policies and
internal control measures to review and monitor its financial
resources.

As of 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB1,975.8 million (31 December 2020: RMB384.6 million). The
Group maintained at net cash position as of 31 December 2021
without any borrowings. The Company paid an interim dividend of
RMB235.8 million in total during the Year.

The gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity, and the sum of long-term and short-term interest bearing
bank loans and other loans as of the corresponding date divided by
the total equity as of the same date. As of 31 December 2021, the
gearing ratio was nil.

Debt
During the Year, the Group had no significant borrowings.
Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group conducts substantially all of its business in China and in
RMB. Therefore, the Group is exposed to minimum foreign
exchange risks. However, the depreciation or appreciation of RMB
and HK$ against foreign currencies may have impact on the Group’s
results. Currently, the Group does not hedge foreign exchange risks,
but will continue to closely monitor its exposure to foreign exchange
risks. The management will consider hedging foreign exchange risks
when the Group becomes materially affected by such risks.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities and capital commitment.

Pledge of Assets

During the Year, the Group did not have any pledged assets.

Major Acquisitions and Disposals

During the Year, the Group did not have any major acquisitions and
disposals, nor was there any plan authorized by the Board for other

material investments or additions of capital assets at the date of this
report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWR D

Major Investment

As of 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any significant
investment.

Events After The Reporting Period

Subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report, no important event affecting the Group has occurred.

Employment and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 1,238 full-time employees,
including 774 employees assigned to relevant project companies to
carry out property development projects under the Group’s
management.

The Company’s sustainable growth depends on the ability and
loyalty of employees. The management of the Company, who
understands the importance of realising the personal value of
employees, has established a transparent evaluation system for all
employees seeking career development in various business units. A
performance-based compensation structure was set up to reward
employees for their performance. The Company also adjusted
compensation from time to time in accordance with its development
strategies and market standards. Efforts have been made to
promote the healthy competition within the Company, maximise the
potential of employees, continuously optimise the current
compensation incentive system to retain and attract excellent
talents.

In addition, the Company recognises the importance of providing
employees with comprehensive and sustainable training
programmes to improve their business skills, enhance their risk
management capabilities and help them demonstrate high standards
of diligence and dedication. It provided employees with various
training programmes with different emphasis based on their tenure.
Besides internal training, third-party training institutions were also
invited to provide online and offline training for the Group’s
employees. Through these measures, team members can get
access to the latest information on industry trends and market
developments. So a stable talent pool full of cohesion and vitality will
support the Company’s long-term and sustainable development.
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CORPORAﬂEGOVERNANCEREPORT

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the corporate
governance report for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards to safeguard the interests of its stakeholders. The
Company has applied the principles in the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules by conducting
its business by reference to the principles of the CG Code and
emphasising such principles in the Company’s governance
framework. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has complied with all applicable code provisions under the CG Code
(as amended from time to time) during the period from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2021.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for the
Directors in their dealings in the Company’s securities. Having made
specific enquires with each Director, the Company confirmed that
the Directors had complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code for the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board, which is chaired by Mr. Wu Po Sum, consists of two
executive Directors and five non-executive Directors, three of whom
are independent. The composition of the Board ensures a balance
of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of Group and the exercising of independent opinion.

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of
this report include:

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Wu Po Sum*
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Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Bing
Mr. Ma Xiaoteng

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua)*
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Baoguo
Mr. Xu Ying
Mr. Siu Chi Hung

* Mr. Wu Po Sum is the father of Ms. Wu Wallis.

All executive Directors and non-executive Directors have entered
into service contracts or letters of appointment with the Company for
a specific term of 3 years. Under the articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”) of the Company, the Board is empowered
to appoint any person as a Director to fill the casual vacancy on or
as an additional Director.

In compliance with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors
(representing one-third of the Board), one of whom possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management. Each of the three independent non-executive
Directors has confirmed his independence of the Company and the
Company considers each of them to be independent in accordance
with the guidelines of assessing independence as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Each of the three independent non-
executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a specific term of three years.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association, at every annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. In accordance with Articles
84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wu Po Sum, Mr.
Hu Bing and Mr. Ma Xiaoteng will retire from their offices at the 2022
annual general meeting of the Company (the “2022 AGM”) and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HREEERAT

BITES

HAK S HE
EEELL

FHTESE
FHER L
BYFHITES

RREKE
RALE
mSHERE

HREREERFHEL LR

IERTESFLRFENTESCEARARULR
H3FEMRBENIEZEE - REARFEAKE
AR ([ERMAR]) EFAREGEMNA
ITREF NEARKERIUER/NIEES-

BRI E AR AIFE3.1015 K3.10A 1K ARAREXR
ET=BBIUFATEFT(HEFTGAB =L
=) ER—RESF LU BEREREAEE
MEEER  —RBIUFNTESHCORREY
ARBEILNM - AR FRE £ R BISE3.131%
PRE VB s iR S RARKREFHAF L -
—ERBURITEEHERARFF L AH=
FOERES-

REBEZIZAAF4HE RARREEBRBFEAX
L ER=2ZHNEF(MARTE=ZMNE
B8 AIAREIINEE ETFER=02—)
AWmERT EEREF=FAEIREREI—
R IRIRERARIEE84(1) 1R K F84(2) 1§ FA 1%
FROTAE  BAIK ST A N S e B SR AR A IO AN 2 B] 2022
FREAFAE ([2022FRRAFAE])RE-
BENAERBEEYMEBEEE T



CORPORAﬂEGOVERNANCEREPORT

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group and in particular, the independent non-executive Directors
have provided the Board with their diversified expertise and
professional advices. The Board is of the view that there is a
balanced composition of executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive Directors in the Board and the independent non-
executive Directors are able to provide sufficient checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of the Group and its
Shareholders. The participation of the independent non-executive
Directors in the Board and committee meetings also provides
independent judgment on the issues relating to strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, conflict of interest and standards of
conduct.

The Board members have access to timely information relating to
the Group’s business and will be provided with further documents
and information upon request to enable them to make informed
decisions. Independent professional advice can be sought to
discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon their request. No
such advice was sought during 2021. The Company has subscribed
appropriate and sufficient insurance coverage on Directors’ liabilities
in respect of legal actions taken against Directors arising out of
corporate activities.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board is in charge of leadership and control of the Group and is
responsible for maximising the Group’s financial performance and
making decisions in the best interests of the Group and its
Shareholders. Under the leadership of Mr. Wu Po Sum, the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), the Board is also
responsible for formulating and overseeing the business strategies
and policies of the Group, approving and monitoring annual budgets
and business plans, reviewing operational and financial
performance, and reviewing and monitoring the Group’s financial
control and risk management systems. The Board has delegated the
daily operation and day-to-day management of the Group as well as
the implementation of the Board’s policies and strategies to the
executive Directors and management of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING

The Board holds meetings regularly and meets at other times as
and when required to review financial, internal and compliance
controls, risk management, company strategy and operating
performance of the Group. In addition, the Board holds general
meeting to maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders.
From the Listing Date to 31 December 2021, the Board held 1
regular meeting, and 2 audit committee meetings.

The number of Board meeting, committee meetings and general
meeting attended by each Director from the Listing Date to 31
December 2021 is set out in the following table:

EFTTERKRRAE

SEFeTHRRUENEMERERITER AR
MASENME ABkeREE AREE-
NAIREREERE I EFERITRERK
G UM R R MR A T S o B BT B #1E2021
F12A31H EFSRTTIREHNEE R2RE

S D A A A
ZEEEEHke

REEE T HEBE2021F12A831BEENE
Eeek BETZEENRERSHIREH
RTE:

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
= Exeed ENZECER FMZEE S REZE9ER BRRAE
Number of meetings held E{TEE &
Wu Po Sum TR AR 17 N/A i A Nil & Nil & Nil £
Hu Bing HRK 17 N/A i A N/A i A N/A i F Nil &
Ma Xiaoteng BEE 11 N/A T3 N/A 7138 N/A T3 A Nil =
Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) T 11 N/A T3 N/A 738 N/A 73 F Nil =
Zhu Baoguo KIREE 0/1 12 Nil Z Nil Nil =
Xu Ying R 11 212 Nil & Nil = Nil Z
Siu Chi Hung Ehov 17 212 N/A i A N/A T iE H Nil &

Sulfficient notice for regular Board meetings and notice of reasonable
days for ad hoc Board meetings were given to all Directors so as to
ensure that each of them had an opportunity to attend the meetings,
and agenda and accompanying Board papers were given to all
Directors in a timely manner. As agreed by the Board, the Directors
may also seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense. No such advice was sought during 2021. During the
intervals between Board meetings, the senior management of the
Company provides the Directors with information on a timely basis
regarding all major developments or changes in the Group’s
businesses.
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Should a Director have a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, he or she will abstain from
voting in respect of the relevant resolution. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at
meetings to deal with such issues. The Company has adopted the
practice of holding Board meetings regularly. Notice of not less than
14 days is given of all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with the opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda. For other committee meetings, 7 days’ notice is given. The
agenda and accompanying board papers are despatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days or seven days
before meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
these documents and be adequately prepared. When the Directors
or committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they are
advised of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to
make their views known to the chairman prior to the meeting.

Management has supplied the Board and its committees with
adequate information and explanations so as to enable them to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before the Board and its committees for approval. Management
is also invited to join the Board or committee meetings where
appropriate.

All the Directors are also entitled to have access to timely
information such as monthly updates in relation to the Group’s
businesses and have separate and independent access to senior
management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code requires all Directors to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the Year, the Company Secretary regularly circulated reading
materials on the amendments to or updates on the relevant laws,
rules and regulations to all Directors as part of their training
materials in the continuous professional development plan of the
Company and the Company confirmed that all Directors read the
training materials and are in compliance with Code C.1.4 of the CG
Code.
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During the Year, all Directors have received the following trainings:

RER 2REBFCEXATEI:

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and

Directors other relevant topics

FREEER EE
= BRNHEMEREENSE
Wu Po Sum TR AR v
Hu Bing HRIK v
Ma Xiaoteng =1 v
Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) Y v
Zhu Baoguo KR v
Xu Ying %sE v
Siu Chi Hung By v

In addition, every newly appointed Director will receive an induction
on the first occasion of his or her appointment, so as to ensure that
he or she has a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Company, and his or her responsibilities under laws,
regulations and especially the governance policies of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The position of chairman is held by Mr. Wu
Po Sum and executive officers (the “EO”) are held by Mr. Hu Bing
and Mr. Ma Xiaoteng. The roles of the chairman and the EO are
clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence and proper
checks and balances. The chairman focuses on formulating the
overall development and strategic planning of the Group. The EO
are mainly responsible for the overall daily operation and
management of the Group as well as its strategic development. Mr.
Ma Xiaoteng has been appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company (the “CEQ”) with effect from 14 February 2022. The
CEO is mainly responsible for the overall daily operation and
management of the Group as well as its strategic development.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects in the consolidated financial
statements of the annual and interim reports in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
Pursuant to code provision D.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, management should provide sufficient explanation and
information to the Board to enable the Board to make an informal
assessment of the financial and other information put before the
Board for approval. The Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the
Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, and have made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits of three months and two months
respectively after the end of the relevant financial periods, as laid
down in the Listing Rules.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to protect the assets of
the Group and the interests of shareholders. The Group is aware of
the responsibilities of the Board and the management in risk
management and internal control systems:

. The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the
nature and extent of risks which the Group is willing to take in
achieving its strategic objectives and ensuring that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems; overseeing
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
risk management and internal control systems, and conducting
a review annually.

. The management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of risk management and internal control
systems, and should provide a confirmation to the Board on
the effectiveness of these systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance that there will be no misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established a risk management framework at the
group level through the following moves to guide the implementation
of risk assessment and continuous risk monitoring activities:

. Establishment of risk management organizational
structure: The Group has established a risk management
organizational structure covering the decision-making level (the
Board and the Audit Committee), the executive level (Group
headquarters and subsidiaries at all levels) and the
supervisory level (the Group’s Audit and Supervision
Department) (see Figure 1: risk management organizational
structure), and split risk management responsibilities to clarify
risk management responsibilities and risk information reporting
routes at all levels;
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Figure 1: Risk management organizational structure
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. Formulation of risk assessment standards: According to its
business nature and operating characteristics, strategic
objectives, and management's risk appetite, the Group
established applicable risk assessment standards covering
strategic, financial, operational, people, compliance, security,
reputation and other dimensions, and used jointly confirmed
assessment methods and assessment standards to assess
the risks that were most likely to affect the achievement of
corporate objectives.

. Establishment of risk management process: The Group
established a risk management process involving risk
identification, risk assessment, risk response, risk monitoring,
reporting and improvement (see Figure 2: risk management
process), and formed a closed loop to continuously monitor
and manage risks. Specifically, driven by its business
objectives, the Group identified the risk factors that affected its
achievement of the business objectives, and evaluated the
possibility and potential impact of each specific risk; sorted out
and recorded the existing specific risk response measures;
and continuously oversaw and assessed changes in risks and
adjusted responses in a timely manner.
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The main features of the Group's risk management system are as
follows:

. Closed-loop risk management process: The risk
management process adopts a combination of top-down and
bottom-up approaches. Through a series of work processes
including risk identification, risk assessment, risk response,
risk monitoring, reporting and improvement, the Group aims to
understands the major risks faced by the Group and
continuously monitors and manages the risks through a
closed-loop risk management process.

. Risk database with a clear hierarchy and focuses: Based
on five risk categories, namely strategy, market, operation,
finance and law, and taking into account the principles of
comprehensiveness, importance, synergy and standardization,
the Group has established a risk database at different levels.

. Risk assessment criteria that fit for the Group: The Group
has established appropriate risk assessment criteria based on
the nature of the Company’s industry and business objectives,
and the management’s risk appetite.

. Continuous improvement and optimization mechanism:
The Group clarified the frequency of risk assessment (at least
once a year) and requirements for reporting and
communication, and continuously improved risk management
process and optimized risk management and control measures
through regular assessment, implementation and follow-up of
risk response measures, communication and reporting.

On the basis of the establishment of the above risk management
system, the management, with the assistance of an external
advisory body, conducted the identification, assessment and
analysis of material risks (including material risks related to the
environmental, social and governance) in the principal businesses
of the Group. A comprehensive review of the risk management
system was completed. The top ten risks facing the Group in 2021
were identified and the corresponding measures were sorted out. It
also clarified the main responsible department for risks, next-step
countermeasures and improvement directions, and reported the
assessment results to the Audit Committee.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group established its applicable internal control system with
reference to the internal control framework of the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
The control system includes a mature organizational structure that
clearly defines the rights and responsibilities of various departments
to protect the assets of the Group and the interests of shareholders.

As an important part of risk management, the internal control system
of the Group was formed on the basis of various risks facing the
Group. As the first line of defense, the management of the Group
headquarters, the management of its subsidiaries and the
management of its various departments designed and implemented
a series of policies and procedures for the processes related to
finance, operation and compliance, and monitored the
implementation and effect of relevant policies and procedures.

The Group has a whistleblowing policy in place to support
employees and other contacts, such as customers or suppliers, to
anonymously raise their concerns with the Audit Committee about
any possible improprieties. At the same time, the Group formulated
a clear anti-corruption policy to support anti-corruption laws and
regulations, and promoted a culture of integrity internally.

The Group has established the Audit and Supervision Department
as the third line of defense. Through internal audit and follow-up
review of the improvement of internal control defects found in the
audit process, it communicates with the relevant management to
supervise the timely implementation of internal control improvement
measures, and provides independent and objective advice to the
Board on the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit and Supervision Department has
unrestricted access to the documents and records, information
systems and staff required to perform audit procedures, and reports
the audit results to the Audit Committee.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group is aware of its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. In terms of procedures for
handling and disseminating inside information and internal controls,
the Group has formulated the Guidelines on the Management and
Disclosure of Inside Information and has publicized its disclosure
policy to directors, senior management and relevant employees who
may have access to sensitive information, requiring them to follow
relevant procedures for handling confidential resources and/or inside
information, regulatory information disclosure and inquiry reply in
accordance with the guidelines.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

During the Year under Review, the Board conducted a
comprehensive review of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems through the Audit Committee, including the
establishment of the risk management system, the risk assessment
and the review of internal control over key business processes in
2021. The review covers the fiscal year 2021 and the Company’s
principal businesses. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and takes
into account changes in the nature and severity of material risks and
the Company's ability to respond to changes in its businesses and
external environment. The Board considers that the Group has
complied with the risk management and internal control provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and that the risk
management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the resources, staff qualifications
and experience of accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, as well as the training courses received by the staff and
the associated budgets, and considered them to be adequate.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company expect to declare and distribute approximately 50%
of the Group’s net profit for a given year as dividends to the
Shareholders. Any future determination to declare and pay any
dividends would require the approval of the Board and will be at
their discretion. In addition, any final dividend for a financial year will
be subject to shareholders’ approval and the relevant laws. The
Board will review dividend policy from time to time in light of the
following factors in determining whether dividends are to be declared
and paid:

. result of operations;

. cash flows;

. financial condition;

. Shareholders’ interests;

. general business conditions and strategies;
. capital requirements and surplus;

. the payment by the Group's subsidiaries of cash dividends to
the Group; and

. other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
the Articles of Association of the Company.

Any final dividend declared by the Company must be approved by
an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at an annual general
meeting of the Company and must not exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. The dividend policy will continue to be
reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that a
dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific period.
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BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit
committee (the "Audit Committee"), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) to oversee the relevant aspects of
the Company’s affairs. The three Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee was established on 12 May 2021. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Siu
Chi Hung (the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Xu Ying and
Mr. Zhu Baoguo during the Year. None of them is a member of the
former or existing auditors of the Company. The Board is of the view
that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient accounting
and financial management expertise and experience to discharge
their duties. However, the Audit Committee is also authorised to
obtain external legal or other independent professional advice if it
considers necessary.
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The Audit Committee has written terms of reference in accordance
with the Code. The principal functions of the Audit Committee
include:

To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external independent auditors
and to approve the remuneration and terms of such
appointments;

To review and monitor the independence and objectivity of the
external independent auditors and effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards;

To review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems and other major financial matters;

To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices, and to monitor the Company’s financial operation
and core business status;

To ensure that the management has fulfilled its duties and the
Group’s strategic objectives to maintain an effective risk
management and internal control system;

To ensure compliance with applicable statutory accounting and
reporting requirements, legal and regulatory requirements,
internal rules and procedures approved by the Board from time
to time; and

To review and monitor the integrity of the consolidated financial
statements, annual and interim reports and the auditor’s report
to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced
assessment of the Group’s financial position.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during 2021 and conducted
the following responsibilities:

1)

2)

reviewed the Group’s interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2021;

reviewed the audit plans and findings of the external auditor;
and

made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
the external auditor.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group as well as considered and
identified risks of the Group subsequent to 31 December 2021 and
will continuously monitor the systems on a regular basis.

The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor annually in
the absence of management to discuss matters relating to any
issues arising from audit and any other matters the external auditor
may wish to raise.

For the Year, the external independent auditors’ remuneration to the
Group’s auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided
to the Group amounted to approximately RMB3,420,000 and
RMB400,000.

The Company’s annual results announcement dated 15 March 2022
for the Year has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 12 May 2021 with
written terms of reference as suggested under the Corporate
Governance Code. The Nomination Committee comprises one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Wu Po Sum (the chairman of the
Nomination Committee), and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhu Baoguo and Mr. Xu Ying.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i)
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least once a year, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the Board for conforming to the strategy of the Company;
(i) identifying and nominating qualified individuals to act as Directors
and making recommendations to the Board regarding such matters;
(iii) assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; (iv) making recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment or reappointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Executive Officers;
and (v) reviewing the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below), and
the implementation of the progress targets set by such policy.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee shall attend the annual
general meeting of the Company to answer questions raised by the
Shareholders on Directors’ nomination and other nomination policy
matters.
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The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with effect on
12 May 2021 which sets out its approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board.

The Company recognizes the benefits of Board diversity and
endeavours to ensure that the Board has the appropriate and
balanced skill levels, experience and perspectives to support the
execution of its business strategies. The Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including professional qualifications and experience, cultural and
educational background, race and ethnicity, gender, age and length
of service. The Company will also take into consideration factors
based on its own business model and specific needs from time to
time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board comprises seven members, including one female Director
and six male Directors with a balanced mix of knowledge and skills,
including various aspects of the real estate industry (such as project
management and property development), as well as overall
business management, investment and accounting. They obtained
degrees in various majors, including real estate management,
architecture, applied finance, international economics and trade, and
business administration. The Company has three independent non-
executive Directors who have different industry backgrounds,
including accounting, property development and investment,
pharmaceuticals and academia. Furthermore, the Board has a
relatively wide range of ages, ranging from 39 to 71 years old.

With regards to gender diversity on the Board, the Group recognizes
the particular importance of gender diversity. The Board currently
comprises seven Directors, including one female Director. The
senior management also currently comprises eight members,
including two female members. The Group has taken and will
continue to take steps to promote and enhance gender diversity at
all levels of the Company. The Group's board diversity policy
provides that the Board shall take opportunities when selecting and
making recommendations on suitable candidates for Board
appointments with the aim to increase the proportion of female
members over time after Listing. The Group will also ensure that
there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to senior level
so that it will have a pipeline of female senior management and
potential successors to the Board going forward. It is the Group's
objective to maintain an appropriate balance of gender diversity with
reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and international and
local recommended best practices. The appointment of one female
Director out of a total of seven Directors satisfies the Group's current
target gender ratio under its board diversity policy.
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Taking into account the Group's business model and specific needs
and also the above (including the presence of one female Director
out of a total of seven Directors), the Group considers that the
composition of the Board satisfies its board diversity policy.

As recommended by the Nomination Committee, the Board has set
measurable objectives (in terms of gender, skills and experience) to
implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12 May 2021 with
written terms of reference as suggested under the Corporate
Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
members, including two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zhu Baoguo (the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Xu Ying and one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Wu Po Sum (the Chairman of the Company), during the
Year.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but not
limited to) (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policies and structures for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration; (ii) reviewing and approving remuneration proposal by
reference to corporate objectives set by the Directors from time to
time.

The amount of the executive Directors’ remuneration is determined
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of the relevant
executive Directors’ experience, responsibility, workload and the
time devoted to the Group. The entire Directors’ remuneration is
adjusted by the Remuneration Committee from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee may also consult the Chairman on
proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive Directors
and has access to professional advice if necessary.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the Year is set out below:

Remuneration

Rig (EEREIARTHD BT RIEXEA55 KAF
B eREEABNFEFMZSREADMNT

Number of individuals

) A
Nil to HK$4,000,000 £ 74,000,000/ 7T -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 4,000,001;% 7T 8,000,000/ 7T, 2

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the total remuneration paid or payable to the
Company’s auditors, KPMG, for audit and non-audit services totally
amounted to RMB3,820,000.

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG is set out
below:

BTN £

AER RNABZBMEFTHR ST EBEAME
FHRGERFIRBENRENOBMBES RS
A K #3,820,0007T

B S £ 5 B2 51 AP 35 75 P Fr BN e o0 A 8K
BT -

Description of services performed Amount

P42 14 AR 7% BO $8 3 kot

RMB’000

AR¥ TR

Audit services HEH RS 3,420

Non-Audit services IEFET R 400

Total et 3,820
COMPANY SECRETARY DEHWE

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
secretarial services and has appointed Ms. Ho Wing Nga as its
Company Secretary. The primary corporate contact person in the
Company is Mr. Hu Bing, the Executive Director.

For the year under review, the Company Secretary has confirmed
that she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held each year at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting and Put Forward Proposals Thereat

The following procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are prepared in accordance with
Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

1)

One or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition.

The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and
must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more of those Shareholders.

The requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary via mail to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 7701A, 77/F, International
Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The extraordinary general meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of the requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene the extraordinary
general meeting within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of
such requisition, the Shareholder(s) himself or themselves
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by him/her/them as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Proposals for Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association as amended from time to time, the Company may from
time to time in a general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any
person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Director.
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A Shareholder may propose a person (the “Person”) for election as
a Director by lodging the following documents at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 7701A, 77/F,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong:

1)  a notice in writing signed by the Shareholder concerned of his/
her/its intention to propose the Person as a Director with full
particulars of the Person including his/her full name and
biographical details as required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules; and

2)  a notice in writing signed by the Person of his/her willingness
to be elected as a Director.

Such notices shall be lodged at least seven (7) days prior to
the date of the general meeting and the period for lodgment of
such notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and shall be at least seven (7) days in length.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the
Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy:

1) Shareholders may direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited.

2) Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary or the Chief Financial Officer whose contact details
are as follows: CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY
LIMITED, Room 7701A, 77/F, International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong

3) Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company’s Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association are available on both the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. There had been no changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company for the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The major task and objective of the Group’s investor relations are to
clearly introduce the Group, including the business positioning,
existing operations and future development of the Group, to the
media, Shareholders, investors, analysts and investment banks
through different communication channels. In future, the Group shall
further enhance communication with the media, Shareholders,
investors, analysts and investment banks on various aspects such
as development strategies, operation and management, financial
prospects and business operation through meetings, senior
management’s participation in investor forums, conferences and
roadshows. The Group is confident in establishing and maintaining
a good relationship with the international capital institutions through
the continued enhancement of information transparency.

The Group emphasises the importance of maintaining good
communication with the Shareholders, so as to increase the
Company’s transparency and understanding by the Shareholders.
To enable that the Shareholders are effectively informed of the
Group’s status and developments, the Group issues
announcements, circulars, notices, interim and annual reports in a
timely manner. To enhance the Company’s transparency, other
information about the Company is published on the Company’s
website.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to meet
and communicate with the Shareholders and to answer any queries
that the Shareholders may have. An external independent auditor is
also present at the annual general meetings. The Chairman will
propose separate resolutions for each issue to be considered at the
annual general meetings. A notice of annual general meeting is
delivered to all Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to
the date of the meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution and other information. Voting results are posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is the primary decision-making body of the
Company, setting fundamental business strategies and policies for
the management and operation of the Group's business and
monitoring their implementation. The Board of Directors comprises
seven Directors, consisting of two executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Directors are elected to serve terms of three years, which are
renewable upon re-election and/or re-appointment.

Chairman and non-executive Director

Mr. Wu Po Sum (#H7& &% % &) (formerly known as Hua Jianming /&
#287), aged 71, is the Chairman of the Board, a non-executive
Director and Controlling Shareholder of the Company. Mr. Wu is the
chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. He was appointed as a
Director on October 22, 2020 and was redesignated as a non-
executive Director and appointed as the Chairman of the Board on
November 6, 2020. Mr. Wu is responsible for formulating the overall
development and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Wu is one of
the Group's controlling shareholders. Mr. Wu is the father of Ms. Wu
Wallis, a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wu is also a
director of various of the Group's subsidiaries, namely Start Ahead
Investment Limited, Central China Management (Hong Kong)
Limited and Henan Start Ahead Commercial Management Co., Ltd.*
O AT £ EE AR A F]) (‘Henan Head Start”).

Mr. Wu is the founder of Central China Real Estate Limited (&3
E D BBR A F*) (stock code: 832) (“CCRE”) and its subsidiaries
(the “CCRE Group”) and has nearly 30 years of experience in real
estate development and investment. He entered the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) real estate market in May 1992, when
he laid the foundation for the CCRE Group and established the
“Jianye (#£2)” brand name. He has always been the chairman and
an executive director of CCRE and a director of CCRE and various
subsidiaries of the CCRE Group, and is responsible for formulating
development strategies, making decisions on investment projects
and determining development directions of the CCRE Group
(including the Group).

In 2017, Mr. Wu was invited to the selection of Golden Sunlight
Public Welfare Awards of Henan Daily (7 5 B i t+ € B5 ¢ 2 25 8%)
and was awarded the “Meritorious Person of the First (2017) Central
China Social Responsibility ( & & (2017) R Rt & EE o TIEIA D)
prize. Besides, the Benyuan Humanity Education Foundation in
Henan (Jf] B8 & AR A XL E % & ) sponsored by him was awarded
the “Outstanding Nonprofit Organization of First (2017) Central
China Social Responsibility (52 (2017) R G E(E » EF N
5.
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Mr. Wu received various awards in 2018. He was appointed as the
“Deputy Director of the Advisory Committee of Industry and
Commerce Association of Henan Province (JiIE & L% 8
2 &8|E1E)", received the “Outstanding Contribution Entrepreneur of
Henan ()] 78 & 8 5 Bt (> 3 %X )" award at the “40 Years of Reform
and Opening up of Henan ()] f & 42 & 24 % B 18404 )" event
organized by Henan Daily, and was awarded the highest accolade
of a leading entrepreneur in the real estate industry in Henan at the
“40 Years of Reform and Opening up, Development of Central China
(2R F R PO+ 4F R R T K Z5 & )" by Henan Province Real Estate
Business Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Wu also received the “Golden
Camel Award” granted by the Society of Entrepreneurs and Ecology
Foundation for his significant contribution in promoting projects
concerning environmental protection.

Mr. Wu was an executive director and the chairman of the board of
DIT Group Limited (R & &R EE AR A A]) (@ company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 726) from November 2019 to
August 2020. The principal business of DIT Group Limited includes
research and development, design, manufacture and sales of
assembled building prefabricated units. Mr. Wu has also been a
director of CURA Investment Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ( &
R BB EE D B R A A) (a company previously listed
on National Equities Exchange and Quotations of the PRC, stock
code: 833880, and subsequently delisted on December 5, 2019)
since January 2013. CURA Investment Management (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. is principally engaged in the provision of professional asset
management services with a focus in private equity real estate and
real estate investment trusts.

Mr. Wu is a director of Joy Bright Investments Limited, wholly-owned
by him, which directly holds 62.68% of the shares of the Company
in issue.

Mr. Wu graduated from Zhengzhou University ( Zf /1 X £) in the
PRC in 1979, majoring in English.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Bing (#87k % %), aged 45, is an executive Director of the
Company. He was appointed as an executive Director of the Group
on November 6, 2020. Mr. Hu is mainly responsible for overall daily
operation and management of the Group as well as its strategic
development. Mr. Hu is also a director of various of the Group's
subsidiaries, namely Zhongyuan Jianye, Henan Start Ahead and
Zhongyuan Jianye (Hainan).

Mr. Hu joined the CCRE Group in January 2004 and had held
various positions in the CCRE Group. These positions include
assistant to general manager, deputy general manager and general
manager of the financial center, deputy director and director of the
financial management center as well as the general manager of the
budget planning department, the executive vice president as well as
general manager of the financial management center, vice president,
chief financial officer and chief operating officer. Through these
senior management positions, he has overseen the Group's project
management business and its financial affairs since its launch, and
has participated in the Group's key management and decision
making. In July 2020, he was formally appointed as a director of
Zhongyuan Jianye. Since November 2020, he formally resigned
from all positions within the CCRE Group in order to continue to
focus on the Group’s business.

Mr. Hu is a Certified Public Valuer in the PRC, where he obtained
his license issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in
September 2001. He obtained his bachelor’s degree in state-owned
assets management and evaluation from School of Business
Administration of Zhongnan University of Economics (7 F 81 &< A 22
TEEEER) (currently known as Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law) (4 @ 81 & BUE K2 in the PRC in July 1997,
and his master’s degree in business administration from Guanghua
School of Management of Peking University (1t R AZ e EEETE L2
B ) in the PRC in June 2004.

Mr. Ma Xiaoteng ( 55 % % 5t &£ ), aged 45, is an executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company. He was appointed as an
executive Director of the Group on November 6, 2020 and the chief
executive officer of the Company on 14 February 2022. Mr. Ma is
mainly responsible for overall daily operation and management of
the Group as well as its strategic development. Mr. Ma is also a
director of Henan Start Ahead, a subsidiary of the Group.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HREEERAT

BITES

KK L ABER RA R FEIHITE F - 742020
FUNACHEZRERAKERTESZ -HKkELE
TEZEARAEEVERBAECENERUARE
B ER -SKTENSAEENE QR T RE
X OUEABETREX(BE)ZES-

FAVKSEETR2004F 1 A IMA R EESRE AR
EEMESREETZERS - ZEREERMH
RO EAREIE BN IE - B IE AR IR ISR
DB B R BB R AT B TR B BB AR LI AT
BlaRRMBERPOALE BIRE BFY
BERBFEELR RECZXSSNERERE
HE BERAEREAZARZEEEREEF
ERREEBLYBEEL2EHBRERE KR
RoM2020F7H REABEZEATREEN
EX-H2020F8 AR RIEABHTRERMBES
B 2B BAFBET IR A EENER -

HAK % A B R BT B EE R Ak B - 7A20014F9 A
TE1S R B B B EB R B A R AR o 1 FN1997 47 A BR
BURFEMFETERE (REP P EBE
ARE)THERERMNBEEEETETMELE
i+ W 722004 4F6 5 BUS L A P Bl g9 b oK 225
EERSRTHEERE TS0

BB E 455 BARRMITESRERED
TE - MHR2020F 11 AR EEE A A EEHTT
BE WH2022F2R14B EZ X AARAER
HITE - BLEFTEREALEZEEAREE
MEEMESKRER SAENALSERBEL
AAEAIRIZES -



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ma joined the CCRE Group in March 2001 and had held various
positions in the CCRE Group. Between March 2001 and September
2002, Mr. Ma served as a salesman and the sales officer of the
sales department of Zhengzhou division, and a sales manager in the
preparatory group of Anyang division. Between October 2002 and
December 2016, he served as a manager in the sales department,
assistant to the general manager, deputy general manager and
general manager of Shanggqiu division, general manager of Zhoukou
division and general manager of Zhoukou region head office, and
was mainly responsible for the management of real estate projects
and asset-light projects in such regions. Between January 2017 and
January 2019, Mr. Ma served as assistant president of CCRE,
general manager of Zhoukou region head office, general manager of
the Fugou Project and general manager of Zhoukou Jianye Green
Base Development Co., Ltd.* (A O EZ ¥ &0 EEEER QA A)),
and was mainly responsible for the management of the Group's
business. Since February 2019, he has been the president of
Zhongyuan Jianye and oversees the Group's business.

Mr. Ma obtained his bachelor’s degree in real estate management
from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics (77 87 4¢ 2Bt ) in
the PRC in July 2000.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Wu Wallis (Z# %z =) (alias: Li Hua), aged 40, is a non-
executive Director of the Company. She was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Group on November 6, 2020. Ms. Wu is
mainly responsible for supervising and reviewing the overall
business development and strategic planning of the Group. Ms. Wu
is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po Sum (the Chairman, a non-executive
Director and controlling shareholder).

Ms. Wu has been a non-executive director of CCRE and a director
of various subsidiaries of the CCRE Group since November 2007.
Ms. Wu has also been a non-executive director of DIT Group Limited
(BERBEERHEEAFR2AA) (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 726) since September 2019.

Ms. Wu obtained her bachelor’s degree in architecture from The
University of New South Wales in Australia in September 2006, and
her master’s degree in applied finance from Macquarie University in
Australia in August 2007.
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Independent non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Baoguo (&R B % 4 ), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Group on May 12, 2021.
Mr. Zhu is the chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of both the audit committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Zhu is primarily responsible for providing
independent judgment on the Group's strategies, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conduct.

Mr. Zhu founded Joincare Pharmaceutical Group Industry Co., Ltd.
(T E S B BRAAF]) (previously known as Shenzhen
Aimier Food Co., Ltd.* (RIIE X B R mA R 2 A)) (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600380) in
1992, and has been serving as its chairman ever since. Mr. Zhu has
also served as the chairman and a non-executive director of Livzon
Pharmaceutical Group Inc.* (BHE#EBRMHDER A F) (a
company dually listed on the Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock codes: 1513 and 000513, respectively) since
2002.

Mr. Zhu was appointed as a member of the Shenzhen Committee of
the third, fourth and fifth Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (CPPCC) in May 2000, May 2005 and May 2010,
respectively. Since August 2000, Mr. Zhu has served various roles,
including the vice president of the Shenzhen General Chamber of
Commerce (AT 427 € ), the vice chairman and honorable vice
president of the Shenzhen Federation of Industry and Commerce
CRYIT IR ER A €), the executive vice president of the
Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce (I T XA €) as
well as the director of Shenzhen Business Elites Union (&I T & &
).

Mr. Zhu obtained his bachelor's degree in chemistry from Henan
Normal University (7 £ Bl &K 2 ) in the PRC in July 1985.

Mr. Xu Ying (k%% %), aged 39, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Group on May 12, 2021. Mr. Xu is a
member of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Xu is primarily
responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group's
strategies, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conduct.
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From August 2007 to April 2010, Mr. Xu served as implementation
consultant and technical supervisor at Wandabao Software
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (BEZE &4 OFII) B A 7). Since April
2010, Mr. Xu served successively at Shenzhen Mingyuan Cloud
Technology Co., Ltd.* (RIITEARERZ AR A F]) (formerly
known as Shenzhen Mingyuan Software Holding Co., Ltd.* (&Il
R E % {9 A R A 71)) as an implementation consultant, manager
of the consulting department of the Shenzhen branch, director of
corporate services, as well as the chief specialist on cost, head of
solution center and dean of Mingyuan Real Estate Research
Institute (BFJR L EfHFTPT ). Mr. Xu has over 10 years of experience
in the real estate industry and has been invited to speak at events
held by China Urban Realty Association, Shougang Fund and
Colony Capital as a special speaker. Since August 2019, Mr. Xu has
been a visiting professor at Changjian Business School ( £ i 5 £
Bt ). Mr. Xu has contributed to the publication of a number of
literature and industry reports, including “Best practice of Real
Estate Project Operation” ( (EH#EIE B E & &EEE) ), “Road to
A Hundred Billions” ( {F1{& 2 #&) ), “Annual Operation Analysis
Report of Listed Real Estate Companies” series ( { T B F R4
EoMTkE) £7)) and “New Challenges of the Epidemic, New
Opportunities for Real Estate Enterprises” ( (& 15 # Pk 8 5 1 i 1
B ).

Mr. Xu obtained his bachelor's degree in international economics
and trade from Zhongnan University (F F§ A28 ) in the PRC in June
2004.

Mr. Siu Chi Hung (& & # % &), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Group on May 12, 2021.
Mr. Siu is the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr.
Siu is primarily responsible for providing independent judgment on
the Group's strategies, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standard of conduct.
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ESNSHNEEEBRE

Mr. Siu has more than 24 years of accounting experience. Mr. Siu
joined KPMG (Hong Kong) in August 1994 as an accountant and
became a partner in July 2008. He was the head of Real Estate of
KPMG (China) and the head of Capital Markets Development,
Southern China of KPMG (China) before his retirement from KPMG
(China) in June 2018. Mr. Siu is currently an independent non-
executive director of Dongjiang Environmental Company Limited*
(BIIRRIMH AR A7) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 0895), an independent non-executive director of China
Gas Industry Investment Holdings Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1940), and an independent non-
executive director of Roiserv Lifestyle Services Co., Ltd. (&R 4E
SERFS AR B R A 8)) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2146). Mr. Siu was an executive director of LVGEM
(China) Real Estate Investment Company Limited (4% 5 (FEQ) it
EREFMR AR (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 0095) from 20 September 2019 to 20 September 2021. Mr.
Siu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and a member of the Hong
Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association (HKINEDA).
He obtained the qualification certificate of independent directors for
listed companies (_ETARB L EEEKFE) from the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in February 2021.

Mr. Siu obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in May 1994.

Senior Management
Mr. Hu Bing

For the details, please refer to the above paragraph headed
“Executive Directors”.

Mr. Ma Xiaoteng

For the details, please refer to the above paragraph headed
“Executive Directors”.
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The Board presents the annual report with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of project management
services (the “Listing Business”) in Henan and other provinces in
the PRC. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the Year by
principal activities is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business review required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out on pages from 17 to 30 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
operates its business in compliance with applicable environmental
protection laws and regulations and has implemented relevant
environmental protection measures in compliance with the required
standards under applicable PRC laws and regulations. Further
details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance will
be disclosed in the environmental, social and governance report of
the Company for the Year to be published in due course in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the Year, there was no material
breach of, or non-compliance, with applicable laws and regulations
by the Group.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to its sustainable and stable development. The
Group is committed to establishing a close relationship with its
employees, enhancing cooperation with its suppliers and providing
high-quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
the Group's sustainable development.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management considers there to be one operating segment under
the requirements of HKFRS 8.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
state of the Group’s affairs as at the date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 86 of this annual
report.

RESULT AND DIVIDENDS

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of RMB770.1
million (2020: RMB681.5 million) have been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK$9.90 cents
per ordinary share for the Year (for the year ended 31 December
2020: Nil), which will be paid out of the Company's share premium
account. HK8.60 cents per ordinary share (for the six months ended
30 June 2020: Nil) was distributed as interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2021.

The final dividend shall be subject to the approval of the 2022 AGM
and such dividend is expected to be paid on or before Monday, 20
June 2022 to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 23
May 2022.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2022 AGM will be held on Tuesday, 10 May 2022. Notice of the
2022 AGM has been published and issued to shareholders of the
Company.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purposes of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the 2022 AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Wednesday, 4 May 2022 to Tuesday, 10 May
2022 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. All properly completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan chai, Hong
Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 3 May 2022, for
registration.

For the purposes of determining the entitlement of the shareholders
to the proposed final Dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 19 May 2022 to Monday, 23
May 2022 (both days inclusive), during no transfer of shares will be
registered. All properly completed share transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan chai, Hong
Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 18 May 2022, for
registration.

FOUR YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets, liabilities and equity of the Group for the last four financial
years is set out on page 184 of this annual report. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 21(a) to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in note 21(e) to the financial
statements and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity,
respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 43.6% of the Group’s total purchases
and purchases from the largest supplier amounted to approximately
9.5% of the Group’s total purchases.

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than
20% of the Group’s total turnover and sales to the largest customer
amounted to approximately 5.8% of the Group’s total turnover.

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company or any Shareholder owning more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital or their respective associates, had

any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Chairman and Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Po Sum
Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Bing
Mr. Ma Xiaoteng

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhu Baoguo

Mr. Xu Ying
Mr. Siu Chi Hung

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association, at every annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. In accordance with Article
84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wu Po Sum, Mr.
Hu Bing, and Mr. Ma Xiaoteng will retire from their offices at the
2022 AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
such information, the Company still considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 54 to 60 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date, which may be terminated by not less than thirty (30) days’
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors has any existing or proposed service contracts
with any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save for the relevant transactions as disclosed in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements or the connected transactions
described in this report, none of the Directors had a significant
beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the Year, nor any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance has been entered into during the Year between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholders
or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) was considered to be
interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

All Directors are entitled to a fee as approved by the Board with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Executive Directors
are entitled to fees, salaries, housing allowances, other allowances,
benefits in kind (including contribution to the pension scheme on
behalf of the Directors) or discretionary bonuses, which are
determined by the Board having regard to the Group’s performance
and the prevailing market conditions and approved by the
remuneration committee of the Company. Details of Directors’
emoluments and emoluments of five highest paid individuals of the
Company are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors (the “Directors”) and chief executives of the Company in
the shares (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures (the
“Debentures”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)) required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
the Company
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(a) RELXTARGREBROTINER

Approximate
percentage of the
interest in the

(b) Name of Director or chief Capacity and Number of Company’s issued

executive nature of interest Shares held share capital”
HERARE#IT
RANERBN

(b) EERESTHRAEBHA BOREREE iR 4 &8 ERa4l

Mr. Wu Po Sum Interest in a controlled corporation 2,065,631,867 62.68%

ARAREE R EE R

Mr. Hu Bing Beneficial owner 11,220,000 0.34%

HAK e EREAA

Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) Interest of a spouse 10,200,000 0.31%

PR+ i (B HE 2

Note: Bt -

1. The approximate percentage of the interest in the Company’s 1. RARFABETRATHOEZBMOE S

issued share capital is based on a total of 3,295,288,120 Shares
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2021.
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(b) Long position in the shares of the associated (b)

corporation

REESEERD P HEFR

Percentage of
interests in
the associated
corporation

Name of Class and number immediately as at
Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interest of shares held 31 December 2021*
M2021F12831H
s 6 REECEER
EEpR BB EE AR B E ERRHE BZADE®
Mr. Wu Po Sum Joy Bright Investments Beneficial owner 20,000 100%
Limited
REREE RERERRAA BEREEA
Mr. Wu Po Sum CCRE Interested in a Controlled 2,078,036,867 70.11%
Corporation
BT BEME REEEERO
Ms. Wu Wallis CCRE Interest of a spouse @ 13,400,000 0.45%
FHLL BEME FiBEam @
Interest of a spouse 44,000 0.001%
(Share options) @
FiBa (BBRE) @
Mr. Hu Bing CCRE Beneficial owner 11,000,000 0.37%
TRk E BREME BERERA
Mr. Ma Xiaoteng CCRE Beneficial owner 3,800,000 0.13%
(Share options) @
SEELE BREME BERERA (BRE)©
Notes: FtaE -

1. Joy Bright Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po

Sum. Therefore, Joy Bright Investments Limited is a controlled
corporation of Mr. Wu Po Sum and Mr. Wu Po Sum is deemed
to be interested in the same number of CCRE Shares that Joy
Bright Investments Limited is interested in under the SFO.

The spouse of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) is interested in
13,400,000 CCRE Shares beneficially owned by him, as well as
44,000 CCRE Shares that may be allotted and issued to him
upon full exercise of the Share options granted by CCRE to him.
Therefore, Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) is deemed to be
interested in the same number of CCRE Shares as her spouse
is interested in under the SFO.

Mr. Ma Xiaoteng is interested in 3,800,000 CCRE Shares that
may be allotted and issued to him upon full exercise of the
share options granted by CCRE to him.
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4. The approximate percentage of the interest in CCRE's issued
share capital is based on a total of 2,964,116,120 Shares of
CCRE in issue as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company or their associates had
any interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief
executives were deemed or taken to have under the provisions of
the SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2021, other than the interests and
short positions of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures” above, the following persons had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares
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Number of Company’s issued
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Joy Bright Investments Limited () Beneficial owner 2,065,631,867 62.68%
BERERRDEM EREAA

Ms. Wu Lam Li @ Interest of spouse 2,065,631,867 62.68%
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Notes:

1. Joy Bright Investments Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum.
Under the SFO, Mr. Wu Po Sum is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares in which Joy Bright Investments Limited is
interested.

2. Ms. Wu Lam Li, being the spouse of Mr. Wu Po Sum, is deemed, or
taken to be, interested in the Shares in which Mr. Wu Po Sum is
interested for the purpose of the SFO.

3. The approximate percentage of the interest in the Company’s issued
share capital is based on a total of 3,295,288,120 Shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, there was no
other person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any borrowings.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto. The Company has subscribed appropriate directors’
and officers’ liabilities insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group which remains in force.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the Year, The Group has entered into the following continuing
connected transactions:

Trademark Licensing Agreement
On May 13, 2021, a trademark licensing agreement (the “Trademark

Licensing Agreement”) was entered into between CCRE and the
Company, pursuant to which CCRE agreed to grant to the Group the
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right to use certain trademarks of the CCRE Group registered in the
PRC and Hong Kong (the “Licensed Trademarks”) for the Group's
business operations and investment activities, as well as the right to
sub-lease the Licensed Trademarks to third parties solely for the
purpose of business operation of the Group. The Trademark
Licensing Agreement has a term of ten years commencing from the
Listing, unless otherwise terminated by both parties. Neither CCRE
nor the Group has the right to unilaterally terminate the Trademark
Licensing Agreement. Pursuant to the Trademark Licensing
Agreement, the licensing fee payable by the Group to CCRE from
Listing onwards will be: (1) for the first three years: RMB15 million
per year; (2) for the fourth to sixth year: RMB20 million per year; and
(3) for the seventh to tenth year: RMB25 million per year. Such
licensing fee will be calculated on a pro-rated basis for less than an
entire calendar year.

The annual caps for the licensing fee for the Year is RMB8,750,000.

For the Year, the licensing fees payable by the Group under the
Trademark Licensing Agreement amounted to RMB8,750,000.

Property Management Services Framework Agreement

On May 13, 2021, the Company and Central China New Life
("Central China New Life") entered into a property management
services framework agreement (the “Property Management
Services Framework Agreement”) for a term commencing from
Listing to December 31, 2023, pursuant to which Central China New
Life shall provide property management services at the Group’s
place of business and headquarter in Zhengzhou and other branch
offices (the “Property Management Services”) to the Group. The
Property Management Services Framework Agreement was agreed
upon on normal commercial terms after arm’s length negotiations,
and the property management fees were determined based on the (i)
number, nature, category and location of the properties; (ii) GFA of
the properties; (iii) rate generally offered by Central China New Life
to Independent Third Parties in respect of comparable services; (iv)
anticipated staff costs of Central China New Life; and (v) prevailing
market prices for comparable services by obtaining quotations from
at least two Independent Third Parties for the provision of similar
services to determinate if the terms offered by Central China New
Life are fair and reasonable and comparable to those offered by
Independent Third Parties. With respect to each property, the
relevant members of Central China New Life and the Group will
further enter into an individual separate agreement that prescribes
the specific terms and conditions of each property.
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The annual caps for the Property Management Services for the Year
is RMB3,000,000.

For the Year, the service fees payable by the Group under the
Property Management Services Framework Agreement amounted to
RMB2,971,000.

Marketing and Service Platform Construction Services
Framework Agreement

On 27 October 2021, the Company entered into a marketing and
service platform construction services agreement (the "Marketing
and Service Platform Construction Services Framework
Agreement") with Central China New Life, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to procure, and Central China New Life agreed to
provide the marketing and service platform construction services (the
“Marketing and Service Platform Construction Services”) to the
Group. Central China New Life shall develop exclusive software,
system and related technical consulting services for marketing
management platforms based on the marketing needs and plans in
relation to the Group’s various projects under management, with
specific functions including, but not limited to, external customer
acquisition mini program, incentives, procurement, rights gifting,
corporate WeChat user unified system, etc. The parties shall enter
into a separate agreement for detailed service scope subject to the
needs of the Group’s various projects under management as and
when necessary. The development fee of the software system
template of each platform is based on the construction workload,
development period, platform requirements, features, development
personnel required, and the prevailing market price of similar
services. The development fee of each platform ranges between
RMB200,000 and RMB1,500,000. Such price range is agreed by the
parties on arm length’s negotiation and the Company has sought
quotations from at least two independent third party service
providers for providing respective comparable services or products
in order to ensure that such price range is fair and reasonable and
no less favourable to the Company than those available from
independent third parties.

The annual caps for the Marketing and Service Platform
Construction Services for the Year is RMB11,000,000.

For the Year, the service fees payable by the Group under the
Marketing and Service Platform Construction Services Framework
Agreement amounted to RMB9,497,000.
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As at the dates of these agreements, Mr. Wu Po Sum is the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and indirectly owned more
than 30% equity interests in CCRE and Central China New Life
Limited. Therefore, the abovementioned transactions also constitute
the continuing connected transactions of the Company. Details of
these agreements are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 18 May 2021 and the announcement of the Company dated
27 October 2021.

The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the
contractual arrangements and/or the circumstances under which
they were adopted, and its impact on the Group. The Board also
confirmed that there is no unwinding of the structured contracts or
failure to unwind when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the
structured contracts are removed.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the relevant
framework agreements and confirmed that the framework
agreements have been entered into:

a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there were not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they were
on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favorable to the
Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the Year in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the connected
transaction and continuing connected transactions as disclosed
above, none of these related party transactions is required to be
disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant events subsequent to 31 December 2021
which would materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the Year, the Board recognized that the repurchase of Shares
could increase the net asset value and/or earnings per share, so the
Company repurchased a total of 5,582,000 Shares on the Stock
Exchange in December, with a total consideration of approximately
HK$8,605,000 (including the transaction cost). The repurchased
shares have been cancelled on 8 March 2022.

The Directors believed that the repurchase was made to reflect the
Company’s recognition of the value and confidence in the long-term
prospects of the industry. Details of the repurchase of shares of the
Company were as follows:
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Number of shares

Date of Repurchase Repurchased Price per share
L ACISRC] BERAEE BRER
Highest (HK$) Lowest (HK$)
ESE(Er) HEECER)
02 December 2021 202112 A2H 650,000 1.72 1.67
07 December 2021 202112 /37H 640,000 1.61 1.57
08 December 2021 2021412H8H 1,250,000 1.63 1.56
10 December 2021 202112 H310H 630,000 1.65 1.53
15 December 2021 202112 A315H 910,000 1.45 1.41
17 December 2021 2021F12A317H 792,000 1.46 1.36
21 December 2021 2021F12A21H 710,000 1.44 1.38

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the Year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract, retain and
motivate talented individuals to contribute to the success of the
business. The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regards to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) pursuant to the MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to consolidated income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years as of 31 December 2021.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in a state managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage of their
payroll costs to the retirement benefits schemes. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to
make the specified contributions. During the reporting period, the
total amounts contributed by the Group to the schemes and costs
charged to the consolidated income statement represent contribution
payable to the schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules
of the schemes.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed level of public float during the Year and
up to the date of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

For the Year, the Company was not involved in any litigation,
arbitration or claims of material importance and there was no
litigation or claim of material importance which was known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened by or against the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report at pages 31 to 53 of
this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the Annual
Results, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and discussed auditing, risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters with the
management as well as reviewed the consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the 2022 AGM.

By order of the board

Wu Po Sum

Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

KPMG'

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Central China Management Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Central
China Management Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“‘the Group”) set out on pages 83 to 183, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on this matter.

Revenue recognition
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Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(r).

BRRIIRE IR E N 3R 1(r) B & FT B ©
The Key Audit Matter
HRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ET AR EZSBE

The Group is principally engaged in the
provision of project management services in
Henan and other provinces in the People’s
Republic of China. Revenue from the Fr:

Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition arising from the
provision of project management services included the following:

BBt e B ERR RS MELENBRARRORTIZFE2IEATE

provision of project management services for
the year ended 31 December 2021 totalled
RMB1,301.4 million (2020: RMB1,152.1
million).
EEETENTEARKMBETEE KEM
BENRERHEEHERZRE - # £2021F
1ANALEFE RHEMERERBEHE
WA AR ¥1,301.48 & 7T (20204
115218 &7T) °

The Group’s project management services
cover the life cycle of the project development
covering the project research and approval,
design and planning, construction, sales and
after-sales stages. Project management
service fee income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the estimated service
period. The service period typically ranges
from three years to five years.
EEENFEHERERERERBMENE
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RBHRBENF=FERF-

evaluating the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the revenue recognition on provision of
project management services;
FHIEREFEEREZRE B AR BRI ZES R B
NETTHEMIE

inspecting project management service contracts, on a sample
basis, to identify key terms and conditions relating to the provision
of project management services and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policies with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;
mMEREEMERERBAR UETRBREHEMERERSEE
BMOBERGR GG Y2ZRTEAHENNERFHEEED
WA RERBR

obtaining and inspecting underlying documentation in respect of
revenue recognised, on a sample basis, which included signed
project management service contracts, project development plans,
progress reports, project construction permits and pre-sale permits,
the formal confirmation regarding incentive fees (if applicable),
invoices and bank-in slips and assessing the business substance of
the underlying transactions and whether the related revenue had
been recognised in accordance with the Group’s revenue
recognition policies;

BRI M REHRABREERNER G BREEZINEM
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Revenue recognition

WA RERR

B ZBERE

FARESEE )

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(r).

BRI A B IRA M 3Rt 1(r) B & ET K °
The Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNETMAEEZEE

For project management contracts that .
contain incentive fees based on the future
sales performance, the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using the most likely amount. We
identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key .
performance indicators of the Group and is
significant to the consolidated financial
statements, both of which give rise to an
inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of .
revenue recognition.
HESENRRFEEXENEEEERGE
WEMERREANS EXEAEAKA
RReHEMAGFHESR RAHWARRETE
RARETEE ARVARESENBASR
XBEEEZ — HEAVBBRREBZBEKX .
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period;

conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to development projects
in progress under the Group’s management and discussing with the
seconded project managers as well as the customers’ management
to observe the development progress of the projects with reference
to the project developing plan and assess the estimated service

HESEEENGEEZREBETHEE L E R W EIRETE B K2
REPEREETHR 2RERRAEFFHEENFEELE
WA TR AR HA

obtaining confirmations, on a sample basis, to confirm the contract
amount, the project management service period, the transactions
during the year and the year-end balances; for unreturned
confirmations, performing alternative procedures by comparing
details with contracts, bank-in slips and other underlying project
related documentation; and

MEESAENARREASR FHEREREHR FEXH
BMEMFERER TR A@MKNIER - BRBKFAEESESR RIT

MK R EMIRE AR ETHEBRRITERERF &

+ assessing the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of
completion progress and revenue from provision of project
management services.

- HEREEREEREHEMEREREELWANBELERENE -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

B ZBERE
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tse Wong Pui.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

15 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
meEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (KA RKSIE)

2021 2020
202145 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Hia AR®T T ARBT T
Revenue WA & 1,301,449 1,152,082
Other income H AU A 4 34,910 5,787
Personnel cost N =12 5(b) (196,859) (168,468)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1 & M # §4 57 52 5(c) (18,177) (12,916)
Listing expenses WX (19,711) (10,448)
Other operating expenses H g &M% (72,330) (38,539)
Impairment losses on trade and other B 5 RHEAEWRIBAME L
receivables and contract assets BERRBEERE 22(a) (15,482) (13,774)
Finance costs B AN 5(a) (413) (389)
Share of loss of an associate FE(H — BB & A Rl 1E (509) (998)
Profit before taxation BR B A % A 5 1,012,878 912,337
Income tax Frig it 6 (242,723) (230,867)
Profit for the year FERA 770,155 681,470
Attributable to: LAUTBEAL :
Equity shareholders of the Company KARIERFEA 770,155 681,470
Earnings per share BRER
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) — BERR#EE (ARESD) 9 24.39 22.97

The notes on pages 91 to 183 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note

21(b).

FNE183EMM AKX AT MR — &7 -
AFRGEANERAARARERE AKRMNOEE
BN E21(b)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEsakEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Pl doveey om0 N 6E1470]
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHM2EUE (BRBIE I L
(after tax and reclassification BN ERE)
adjustments)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently — FGEREI1E BT 7 M= B i)
to profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences on translation of P &GN B A R B A 3R R O EE
financial statements of overseas HER
subsidiaries (95) 16
Other comprehensive income for the year FEH 12 H K= (95) 16
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHKEHEE 770,060 681,486
Attributable to: BT PE4h
Equity shareholders of the Company RARIEEFEA 770,060 681,486

The notes on pages 91 to 183 form part of these financial FNE183E MM FAEM AT BEHRER—I 5 °
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR AR

At 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
R20214612A31H (YA R#Z1E)

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 ARETx ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB KRB 10 20,212 24,342
Intangible assets mAE 10 9,628 1,128
Interest in an associate R—EE 2L Q8D 12 2,501 3,010
Other financial assets HihemEE 13 8,076 =
Deferred tax assets BETRIEEE 20(b) 10,158 6,531
e 50,575 35,011 _
Current assets RBEE
Contract assets BREE 14(a) 300,500 238,149
Trade and other receivables B 5 N HE KR GRIR 15 568,150 1,017,292
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFED 16 1,975,806 384,599
e 2844456 1,640,040
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H M EMRIE 17 128,258 113,885
Contract liabilities BHEE 14(b) 393,249 474,949
Lease liabilities HERE 18 4,464 7,281
Current taxation BN ERFR 18 20(a) 47,822 66,473
e 573,793 662,588
Netcurrentassets ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ #"B®EEFE 000000 2,270,663 977452
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS 2,321,238 1,012,463
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE 18 1,609 5,071
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,319,629 1,007,392
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

e ISR 3R (4

At 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
2021F12 5318 (UARKZIE)

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HaF AR®T ARBTTT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR K &
Share capital A& A 21(a) 27,035 =
Reserves i 21(d) 2,292,594 1,007,392
Total equity attributable to equity RATEREE AR
shareholders of the Company ERBEE 2,319,629 1,007,392
TOTAL EQUITY A 2,319,629 1,007,392

* The balance represents amount less than RMB1,000.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
15 March 2022.

Hu Bing
B K
Executive Director

BITEF

The notes on pages 91 to 183 form part of these financial
statements.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT

* EHREENARK1,000TH -

R2022F3 A15 B EEFE o E IR HIE -

Ma Xiaoteng
-1
Executive Director

BITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12F31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ANARRREARL
Other Statutory
Share Share Treasury capital reserve  Exchange Retained
capital premium shares reserve fund Teserves profits Total
k& RARE  ERRH EbEARE iEREE  EXRE  REEA ag
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
it AEETR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARMTn ARETn ARETx
(Note 21(z)  (Note 21(z) (Note 21(d)i)) (Note 21(d)i) (Note 21(d)i}) (Note 21(d)fiv)
(Wa21m)  (Kazim) (W) (BE2090) (BE2000) (K210 0)
Balance at 1 January 2021 RONE1B1BRES - - - 127,021 144,138 16 736,217 1,007,392
Changes in equity for 2021: NNERERE:
Proft for the year R - - - - - - 770,155 770,155
Other comprehensive income A2 ERE - - - - - (95) - (95)
Total comprehensive income PENHER - - - - - (95) 770,155 710,060
Capitalisation issue uN&:3 21(a) 24,343 (24,343) - = - = - =
Issuance of shares by initial public ~ EEENAREELS
offering &3 21(a) 2,692 778,831 - - - - - 781,523
Purchase of own shares BERIRH 21(d)ii) - - (6,950) - - - - (6,950)
Appropriation o statutory reserve fund  EEZEFEES 21(a)i) - - - - 79,157 - (79,157) -
Dividends declared inrespectofthe ~ AEEEAZREHRE
current year 21(b) - (235,813) - - - - - (235,813)
Eqdyseledsurciosctpamen | DRSRSHBGSNE 1 N S SR . T SR il
Balance at 31 December 2021 RONE12A3BHES 27,035 518,675 (6,950) 130,438 223,295 (19 1,421,215 2,319,629

*

The balance represents amount less than RMB1,000.

* RBBRIEER ARY,000TTH S FE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
mEEmBER (A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARAEERANER

Share Capital Statutory Exchange Retained
capital reserve reserve fund reserves profits Total
BA BARE EEREE i3 TREDER £E
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Hiit AR#TR AR#TR ARETR AR#TR ARETR ARETR

(Note 21(z)  (Note 21(d)i)) ~ (Note 21(d)i)  (Note 21(d)iv))
(Hiz21)  (Hz2100)  (WEaam)  (HE21a)m)

Balance at 1 January 2020 1202051 B1B HE 6 150,000 (72,154) 75,000 - 593,885 746,731
Changes in equity for 2020; WNFREEE:
Profit for the year EREMN - - - - 681,470 681,470
Other comprehensive income 2 AN - - - 16 - 16
Total comprehensive income 2ENHEE - - - 16 681470 681,486
Appropriation to statutory reserve fund ~ EAZZTRES 21(a)(i) = = 69,138 = (69,138) =
Dividends approved in respect of the BAEEEHENRS

previous year 21(b) - - - - (470,000) (470,000)
Deemed contribution from the parent R ERBEAEMTE

company 1(b) - 48,004 - - - 48,004
Equity settled share-based payment INEREEMRO XA 19 - 117 - - = 117
Avising from reorganisation REEHR 1(b) (150,000) 150,000 = = = =
Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020F12B31 A&k - 127,021 144,138 16 736,217 1,007,392
* The balance represents amount less than RMB1,000. * REHBIERNARYE1,000TH S -

The notes on pages 91 to 183 form part of these financial $91ZE183E KWK AT IERKM—Z 5 o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12F31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Hia AR¥T ARBT T
Operating activities KETE
Cash generated from operations KEMSIRS 16(b) 788,486 828,922
PRC tax paid BN ERIA 20(a) (265,001) (214,206)
Net cash generated from operating RETHHBRETHE
il e 514716
Investing activities REETH
Payment for the purchase of property, BEWE WEKEHED
plant and equipment (N (10,055) (3,207)
Payment for the purchase of intangible & B £ & ER &
assets (2,903) (573)
Advances to related parties w) BB 5 EA 3K (150,000) (775,400)
Repayment from related parties RaHE 77 B 993,220 400,000
Advances to thrid parties ME=F K (317,552) =
Payment for investment in other WERHEAM S BE ERRT K
financial assets (8,076) -
Interest received 2 W F B 33,043 5,458
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEBME (FA)R:
investing activities ek 537,677 | (373,722)
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from issuance of shares by BRERXAAEEETRND
initial public offering, net of share Y P15 3038 - HIBR M 5 3%
issuance expenses TR 781,523 -
Repurchase of own shares EEA=REgiE) (6,950) -
Dividend paid B E 21(b) (235,813) (200,000)
Deemed contribution from the parent HIERB R ARIAEE
company 1(b) - 3,738
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEHENERT D 16(c) (8,368) (5,125)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERSHFEHSD 16(c) (413) (389)
Net cash generated from/(used in) METEHRE (AR
financing activities T 529,979 (201,776)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

AREBEIRERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
HaF AR%T T ARBFT
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBESEEYILMNTFE
equivalents 1,591,141 39,218
Cash and cash equivalents at MAMENEREREEE
1 January BY 16(a) 384,599 345,381
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEERSHIE
changes 66 -
Cash and cash equivalents at R12AMANBEERRESE
31 December By 16(a) 1,975,806 384,599

The notes on pages 91 to 183 form part of these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Central China Management Company Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 22 October 2020, as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Act,
Cap. 22 (Act 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands (the “Companies Act’). Its principal place of business is at
Room 7701A, 77th Floor, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin
Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong and has its registered office at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 31 May 2021 (the “Listing Date”). The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of project management services in Henan
and other provinces in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting period reflected in
these financial statements.

B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (UARKESIE)

FREZBERAR([ARAREBEREHEE
B15E22% (CAREY (1961F FE35 A - K45 E
R1&5T) ([RAE]) 20206510 A22B £ £
HERI R HEREERAR -HE T &
BAURBANENTEERA —RRIKE S ES
TTHETT01A = - H &k fit # £ & {7 7 Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° 2~ 2 &%
HH2021F58318 ([ LB EF BB E
RGMBERAR ([BERAT])ER ETARRQA
REMBRAR (SB[ AEE])EFZERFEAR
FAME ([RE])ImE REMmEDIEERERS
HERRER -

1 BXETHEE
(a) EHEH

BEMBREDREMBERETS
MBHmEEA (LR BREEEER
B2 & 840 2 BT A 8 R 8 BB
M mEER FEGTER LR
B) - BE—REMZEHRAIRE
BRRHGRHINBEERERE - HLFH
BHREANNTEELEBERIMAR
REES EMARRNZ BRI
AEBRAZEAGAHRENRTX
-

EREFMAGEEME TRAE
EAETHEERERHAHER
R ZEYHRE LR ZER] Kt
FICOEEEBRBERERZFEAR
SEASHE T B ®REFHHE
BT mMER St RRBLEME
HEEH -

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
TR FFR

91



92

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation and functional and
presentation currency

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and completion
of the reorganisation as mentioned below (the
“Reorganisation”), the project management business of
the Group (the “Listing Business”) was carried out by
Henan Zhongyuan Central China City Development
Company Limited (“Zhongyuan Jianye”) and certain
other subsidiaries of Central China Real Estate Limited
(the “Other CCRE Operating Entities”). Apart from the
project management business, these entities are also
engaged in the real estate development and investment
business (the “Non-Listing Business”) either through
separate legal entities or divisions thereof.

To rationalise the corporate structure in preparation of
the listing of the Company’s shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group underwent
the Reorganisation. As part of the Reorganisation,
Zhongyuan Jianye disposed of its equity interests in four
invested entities engaging in the Non-Listing Business
(the “Excluded Entities”). Meanwhile, the project
management business previously operated by Other
CCRE Operating Entities was also transferred to the
Group by way of assignment of the existing uncompleted
project management contracts owned by these entities
to Zhongyuan Jianye.

The financial information of the Excluded Entities has
been excluded since the beginning of the periods
presented as if Zhongyuan Jianye had never held any
equity interests in such entities. Cash flows in connection
with the investments in and the disposal of the Excluded
Entities are reflected as capital distributions to and
capital contributions from the shareholders as
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation and functional and
presentation currency (Continued)

Upon completion of the Reorganisation, the Company
became the holding company of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group. The Reorganisation involved
inserting several newly formed investment holding
entities with no substantive operations as the new
holding companies of the project management business.
There were no changes in the economic substance of
the ownership and the project management business
before and after the Reorganisation. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements for the years presented
have been prepared as a continuation of the financial
statements of the project management business with its
assets and liabilities recognised and measured on a
carry-over basis. Intra-group balances, transactions and
unrealised gains/losses on intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 comprise the Group and the Group’s
interest in an associate. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) rounded
to the nearest thousand except as otherwise indicated,
while the Company’s functional currency is the Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"). The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis except for the investments in financial assets
stated at fair value (see note 1(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (UARKESIE)

1 EBEXEiHEE@®

(b)

mMREERINERZINEH (E)

REATRE RARKAARERR
FRE T B R AR IR AR - BEY
RONAE T I & B E X553 L
BRERBRESR FREHEREREH
W IZER AR - EEARRK FTERE
EEMERREBORKBEEL L&
g MEJNEBFENE
EMBRERDEREHEREER
PHERROEEMRE MEENR
REBNEERAEREBELET
NERLFAE-RERNGER - XH R
SEARXZEENEMNRERRK
5/ EENREMBHRRETHE
35 °

HE2021F12831B I FEZ & A
PHEREREEASEURAREER
—fEBE AR 2 o BB EIERN
BAMBRERAARB(TARKE])
20 WHBREEEOINTAE M
AR S &5 T ([Ex]) »
BN ERBRRAFE LR AEE
FEREE UAFEFECEREE
AN (RHIFE1(F)) ©

RETABEMBRELEL WM
EMEREEEFHAZERRE
ArEE BB WARAXZHE
BHHIE - BT MBRR - ZFEE R
HERRDERAELRRRBA/R
ERABLATBRENZHEEMREAR
MERERIMER/RZFETAER
HMEHREMBZFHNEER
BERAEMHEEE BRNER
AREg R F TR -

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
—EC-FFR

93



94

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation and functional and
presentation currency (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2

. Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent
concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Other than the amendment to HKFRS 16, the Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period. None of
these developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior years have been prepared or presented in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(f))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(j)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 1(j)(ii)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the period are recognised in the
profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate (after applying the ECL model to such other
long-term interests where applicable (see note 1(j)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset(see note 1(f)).

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) for
which transaction costs are recognised directly in profit
or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines
fair value of financial instruments, see note 22(c). These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(i)

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement

categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest

method (see note 1(r)(iii)).

— fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised

in profit or loss.

(ij)  Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is
not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from
an investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(r)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see

note 1(j)(ii)).
— Items of plant and equipment, including right-of use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 1(i)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Properties leased for own use Over the lease terms

— Motor vehicles 4 years
— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 5 years
— Leasehold improvements 1to 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see

note 1(j)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

— Software 2 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As alessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components and
accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see notes 1(g) and 1(j)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is
a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are rent concessions that occurred as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has
taken advantage of the practical expedient not to
assess whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and other receivables); and

— contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see
note 1(k)).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Confinued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments (including loan
commitments issued), the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument (including a loan commitment) has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on
the financial instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when
(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continueqd)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status

and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 1(r)(iii) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset

have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
lease receivable or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

B Z2021F 12318 I FE (UAREZIE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets;

intangible assets;

investment in an associate; and

investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXETHER@®)
(Continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) () EEEEREEREGE)

(i) BMEHEEERE ()

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continueqd)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(j)(i)
and (ii)).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 1(r)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(j)(i) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(l)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 1(r)). A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(l)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see note

1(r)(iii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(k)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 1(j)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(j)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Trade and other payables are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC
and the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred.

Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the binomial lattice model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Equity-settled share-based payments
(Continueqd)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior year is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the provision of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a service is
transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration
for any effects of a significant financing component if the
period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Project management service fee income
Project management service fee income is

recognised on a straight-line basis over the
estimated service period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

Project management service fee income
(Continued)

Variable consideration

For project management contracts that contain
variable consideration based on the future sales
performance of the project, the Group estimates
the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using the most likely amount.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of
the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided
by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)  Project management service fee income

(Continued)

Principal versus agent (Continueqd)

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer. The Group is an agent if
its performance obligation is to arrange for the
provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not
control the specified good or service provided by
another party before that good or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts
as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitied in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.

(ii) Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive

payment is established.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 1(j)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on
which the Group initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statement are evaluated continually and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal to the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that may have a significant effect
on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities mainly include
those related to property development activities.

B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (UARKESIE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND 2
ESTIMATES (continued)

Note 22 contains information about the assumption and their
risk factors relating to financial instruments. Other accounting
judgements and key sources of significant estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Credit loss for trade and other receivables and
contract assets

Credit losses for trade and other receivables and
contract assets are determined based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected credit loss rates. The
Group adjusts judgement in making the assumption and
selecting inputs for computing such impairment loss,
broadly based on the available customers’ historical
data, existing market conditions including forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting periods.

(b) Variable consideration

Variable consideration comprises base management
fees based on pre-agreed milestones and incentive fees
that the Group may earn by meeting the conditions set
out in the Group’s project management service contracts
with customers. The estimated amount of variable
consideration will be included in the transaction price
only to the extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal
in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The
Group considers whether the amount of variable
consideration is constrained based on its historical
experience, current negotiations with customers and the
current economic conditions.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are provision of

project management services.

(i)

(ii)

Revenue from contracts with customers is as
follows:

B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

3 WARSEHRSE
(a) WA

AEENEIEZXBREAFSHER
AR -

() BEFEHUAMT:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
Revenue from contracts with BREBMBEHRELERES
customers within the scope of REEVRERERERNE
HKFRS15 and recognised over IS F SILON
time
— Provision of project management — 2t = i A KR 2 AR
services 1,301,449 1,152,082

The Group’s customer base is diversified and
includes no customer with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenues.

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from provision of project
management services

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s existing
contracts is RMB3,102,923,000 (2020:
RMB2,790,191,000). This amount represents
revenue expected to be recognised in the future
from project management service contracts entered
into by the customers with the Group. The Group
will recognise the expected revenue in future by
measuring the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation, which is
expected to occur over the next 48 months (2020:
next 48 months).

AEBNMEFPEZ T L&
HEMEPNRZHBLEARE
WA BI10% °

TR R R 5 n] 7 538 49 b5 EE AL 2
AR A

(ii)

MR2021F12831H  N&E B IR
BAHNBETHRBREORLEH
RPERBLEREARE
3,102,923,0007T (20204 : AR
#2,790,191,0007T) % & FB R
REFHASEZHEERI LK
EHERERBEEOFRKRE
BT R A A - AE B IR
PR ST K B 4V & 75 B #E 2 IS FE 2R
B A Z TS TR AR 2R4A81E A A
(20207 : & 7k481E A ) & 78 &
NG
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
EHZ22021F12A31 A IFFE (KA RKESE)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(@) Revenue (Continued)

(ii)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from provision of project
management services (Continueqd)

The above amount does not include any amounts
of incentive fee that the Group may earn in the
future by meeting the conditions set out in the
Group’s project management service contracts with
customers, unless at the reporting date it is highly
probable that the Group will satisfy the conditions
for earning those bonuses.

(b) Segment reporting

(i)

(ii)

Services from which reportable segments
derive their revenue

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment
performance is more focused on the Group as a
whole, as all of the Group’s activities are
considered to be primarily dependent on the
performance on project management service.
Resources are allocated based on what is
beneficial for the Group in enhancing its project
management service activities as a whole rather
than any specific service. Performance assessment
is based on the results of the Group as a whole.
Therefore, management considers there is only
one operating segment under the requirements of
HKFRS 8, Operating segments.

Geographical information
No geographical information is shown as the

revenue and profit from operations of the Group is
all derived from activities in the PRC.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER INCOME

B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (UARKESIE)

Hithlg A
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Interest income on financial assets

HHIENATTENEREERN

measured at amortised cost F B U A 33,043 5,458
Others HAh 1,867 329
34,910 5,787

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BR % A A

BR A A g A D R HER A S B IRIZESC:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(a) Finance costs A A
Interest on lease liabilities (note 16(c)) M E A EZFI| & (HfiE16(c)) 413 389
(b) Personnel cost ABBMX
Salaries, wages and other benefits  #& - T & M H 0 1EF 183,949 165,267
Contributions to defined contribution 55 R R 5T 213X
retirement plan 9,493 2,030
Equity settled share-based payment LA %5 45 & #9 I D < 1+ &
expenses (note 19) (K12%19) 3,417 1,171
196,859 168,468
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in defined contribution retirement schemes which
are administered and operated by the local municipal
government. The PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are
calculated on certain percentage of the average Employee
salary as agreed by the local municipal government to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group also participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group’s and employee’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are based on 5% of the relevant income of the
relevant employee (up to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000) and in accordance with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and related
regulations.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond the
annual contributions described above.

BR %Az 7 (42)

AEETENBARNERAZEHE N
™ & I I A RO R FOR RET 8
B P B A R R kAt SR A BB B )R

KEFRHES TRERASBENEY
b1 717 Y 7 5 A8 B8 5 @ 1) P 0 B —
EEE DL E -

AEETSABRERECRENERE
mHERTEEEE ([RERFE]) AL
&EE\H%@%\@%%ZT TR T5 2 BR 58 1
HRTE R SR RABEROI N ER R
EHEBES 2HEBERA (FABEBYA L
PR /330,000/8 7T ) #95% 7t & °

B bt FE N AR E S EHBH
X EZEFFEEENRAREBNNERER
Fo

2021 2020
202145 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
K et ARMT ARBTTT
(c) Other items HiE |
Depreciation charge MERX 10
— owned property, plantand ~ — EARYE  BE k&
equipment 8,209 6,012
— right-of-use assets —(EREEE 8,065 5,646
16,274 11,658
Amortisation cost of intangible 2 & E B S5 AL A
assets 10 1,903 1,258
Auditor's remuneration ZE A B 5 3,919 1,612

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

(@)

B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

6 HGomlmRHEMEEKERAN

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND FRig#i
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (@) HEERREMEEKER AT
and other comprehensive income represents: B A
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR®T ARBTTT
Current tax B EA B 1]
PRC Corporate Income Tax BT AT (iii) 246,350 234,311
Deferred tax ERERIE
Origination and reversal of By = S SRR R E
temporary differences (3,627) (3,444)
242,723 230,867

(ii)

(iif)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Island and the BVI, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

Income tax rate applicable to Group entities
incorporated in Hong Kong for the income subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the years is 8.25%
on the first HK$2 million of estimated assessable
profit and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC
and the respective regulations of Hainan Free
Trade Port (the “Hainan FTP”), except for
Zhongyuan Central China (Hainan) Management
Services Limited Company (“Zhongyuan Jianye
(Hainan)”), which enjoys a preferential income tax
rate of 15% during the year, the other subsidiaries
which operate in mainland China are subject to
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of
25%.

() REREESMRBEBARE
SR A RRA - AR EEA
RASEERABERARES
BRERFAFH -

iy RBBEEFE REAZHEFTLERN
GHOAGEHRME REBE
AL By & B B B (b 5T FE R
it F B128 & 78 TT1%28.25% M %
RE mEB2EEE TG
= FE R Bl it A 116.5% 1 & 5+

sty
B o
>t

REFBECEMSHER SR
“eEARR ([(BmEER])
HARREAR G - B REX (8F)
BERFBERAR ([FREXE
(BB )RBEBRFEZEER
P15 T E15% A5 IR B A
WEENEAMHE QR AR
25% HRE R R BB ETE
B (TREMBHR]) -

(iif)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

B Z2021F 12318 I FE (UAREZIE)

6 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND FRi&# (@)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b)

profit at applicable tax rates:

i F B EER LN -

FeRmREMEEKERAN

MERXBZERRXFEN S

2021 2020

202145 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Profit before taxation B 353 Al A 1,012,878 912,337
Tax on profit before tax, calculated at  3%25% Fi = 5T & OBk B il ik 7

25% CORSoRE] 253,220 228,084

Difference in tax rates for parent HAREETHE AR E

company and certain subsidiaries Gt (16,832) =

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A] #0452 Ay Tl 765 2 & 6,335 2,783

Income tax expense Fri5 i & A 242,723 230,867

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEEHM
Directors’ emoluments are as follows: EENEHMNAT
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Director’'s and benefits Discretionary scheme payments
fee in kind bonuses contributions (note 19) 2021 Total
MR35
I8 28 REGTE EBENCR
2021 20216 E=He REWDER miERS e (Hfat19) 201585

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRL ARETR ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR AR®T:R

Chairmanandnon- IEREHTES

executive director
Mr. Wu Po Sum (i) HAREARLE() 1,420 - - - - 1,420

Executive directors ~ #{TEE

Mr. Hu Bing (ii) BRI A (i) - 1,091 3,598 25 - 4,714
Mr. Ma Xiaoteng (iii) 5 BB 7 £ (i) - 1,316 4,476 33 226 6,051
Non-executive FHTES

director
Ms. Wu Wallis FHEEL(i)

(alias Li Hua) (i) 123 - - - - 123

Independent non- BUFHITES
executive directors

Mr. Zhu Baoguo (iv)  SRAREISE A (iv) 114 = = — - 14
Mr. Xu Ying (iv) BRBEE (V) 14 - - - = 14
Mr. Siu Chi Hung (iv) RS % 4 (iv) 114 = - - - 14

1,885 2,407 8,074 58 226 12,650
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

7 EZELHEMe)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement  Share-based
Director's  and benefits  Discretionary scheme payments
fee in kind bonuses  contributions (note 19) 2020 Total
WA D A
IE 28 BIRETE  ERORH
2020 2020F ESHE  REWEA HiEEE {3 (Hi319)  2020F 485t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETT AR®TT ARETT ARETRT ARET:
Chairmanandnon- EERIHUTES
executive director
Mr. Wu Po Sum (i) TR E() - = = - - =
Executive directors ~ #{TES
Mr. Hu Bing (ii) HR K 5 4 (ii) - - 2,437 - = 2,437
Mr. Ma Xiaoteng (iii) 5 BB 5 2 (i) - 1,501 4,119 912 6,534
Non-executive FHTES
director
Ms. Wu Wallis FEZL()
(alias Li Hua) (i) - - - - - -
- 1,501 6,556 2 912 8,971
Note: Kz -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Mr. Wu Po Sum joined the Group’s business in June 2015 and
was appointed as Chairman and non-executive Director on 22
October 2020. Mr. Wu Po Sum did not receive any emoluments
from the Group during 2020. Ms. Wu Wallis, the daughter of Mr.
Wu Po Sum, joined the Group as a non-executive director on 6
November 2020.

Mr. Hu Bing joined the Group’s business in June 2015 and was
subsequently appointed as a director of Zhongyuan Jianye in
July 2020 and an executive director of the Company on 6
November 2020.

Mr. Ma Xiaoteng joined the Group’s business in June 2015 and
was subsequently appointed as the president of Zhongyuan
Jianye in February 2019 and an executive director of the
Company on 6 November 2020. His emoluments disclosed
above represent the compensations as his services for the
Listing Business as a senior manager of Other CCRE Operating
Entities and the president of Zhongyuan Jianye during 2020.

Mr. Xu Ying, Mr. Zhu Baoguo and Mr. Siu Chi Hung were
appointed as independent non-executive directors on 12 May
2021.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

MR L ER2015F6 A MMA AR S B A 2
W HR2020F10 822 EEE R EH#
IEITE B - AR R EFR2020F I & B
AEEREEREHM - HERLTENLT
Z i 47 + 722020411 A6 J0 A 2N &£ B #E
TIERITES -

HAK SR £ 720156 A I A AN SR B 3 7%
WHER R2020F7TAEZ T AT REXE
£ M R20205F11 A6 A B R T AR D Al#H
TEE-

EEE R AR 20156 A AR EBE

WEERR2019F 2 AR T AR R ¥4
£ K 712020511 H6 B E R T A AR EH
TTEE o LA R TR 1% 2 % Bl 15 74 20204F
HETMEBETEMEXEHELE TR
BREERPREECR IS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 8 EEEFMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two hEESHFMALTHRMRE AL (20204 :
(2020:two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in MEZ)REE HEMBEBENRNZT - B H
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the BRI =% (2020F : = %) A 0 H B 42 %8
other three (2020: three) individuals are as follows: P
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Salaries and other emoluments HeRAMMES 1,993 2,153
Discretionary bonuses B 585 3,898 5,312
Retirement scheme contributions RRET SRR 99 5
Share-based payments PARR (7 & ERE B 15 50 629 =
6,619 7,470
The emoluments of these three (2020:three) individuals with =% (20204F : =) &= 5 B A £ 49 57 BN
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: BRUATEE :
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 22,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017% 7T £=3,500,000/8 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ 7T 24,000,000/ 7T 1 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB770,155,000 and the weighted average of
3,158,084,620 ordinary shares in issue during the year,
comprising:

(i) 1 ordinary share in issue at 1 January 2021;

(i) 2,967,116,119 ordinary shares issued pursuant to
the capitalisation issue immediately prior to the
completion of the initial public offering, as if these
ordinary shares were outstanding throughout the
year; and

(iii) 328,172,000 ordinary shares issued on the Listing
Date by initial public offering; and

(iv) 5,582,000 ordinary shares repurchased by the
Company in December 2021.

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 was calculated based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB681,470,000 and the weighted average of
2,967,116,119 ordinary shares, as if 2,967,116,119
ordinary shares issued pursuant to the capitalisation
issue immediately prior to the completion of the initial
public offering were outstanding throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT

9 EBREF

(a)

BREAXER

HE2021F12831B I FEFRE
RBMDIEREAFERRRIERF
B A& ) A R #¥770,155,0007C
LB ETTLTBEBRMDINETYSH
3,158,084,620/% 515 - A &35 :

(i) F2021F1A1HBEBITIRITE

%

(i) BRXAFRBEEZTKAMREEARE
B 17 M 317 792,967,116, 1190% &
Bl REAZELEBRNAE
BE2FEBRITEN R

iy RETEHBBERAMEES
17 89328,172,000/% & 37 % ;
&

(iv) ARAER2021F127 @ 5
5,582,000/% & i %

#H £2020F 128318 L FEH TR
EARBINDBERARAERIZTEA
& (5% ) A R #5681,470,0007T & &
i A% 0 HE S 15 #82,967,116,1198% (48
BEXAMEETKAREE AL
17 317 H92,967,116,1190% L@ A%
R E 220209128318 It F [E %17
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 9 SKEF =
(a) Basic earnings per share (Continued) (a) BREREBRE)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares: TR NAE T8
2021 2020
20214 20204F
Issued ordinary share at 1 January M1A1EE TR 1 =
Issuance of share upon the AN A R B AR 7 B B AT AR AP
incorporation of the Company - =
Effect of capitalisation issue BERLBEITHRE 2,967,116,119  2,967,116,119
Effect of shares issued by initial public ~ 72021F5A31HEBEH X
offering on 31 May 2021 NABEBRITRNOTE 191,433,667 =
Effect of shares repurchased f&fh B g & (465,167) =

3,158,084,620 2,967,116,119

* The amount represents the weighted number less than * ZHERAMERFT 21K -
1 share.
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREEEF
There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding #H £20214F 2020912 H31H IFF
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. R ERITEIINNEEEER D -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTAND 10 ¥% - BRERSREUREBEEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount of property, (@) Y% KBEERREBREEZYHE
plant and equipment
Properties Furniture,
leased for Motor fixtures and Leasehold
own use Vehicles equipment improvements Total
HRA®H B BE HE
HEWE RBIE HERRHE MEEE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBT:R

Cost A
At 1 January 2020 72020561418 15,298 5,028 3,980 8,277 32,583
Additions NE 8,385 608 1,638 1,000 11,631
Disposals & (1,809) = = = (1,809)
At 31 December 2020 /20209 12H31H 21,874 5,636 5,618 9,277 42,405
Additions NE 2,089 547 467 9,041 12,144
Disposals & (1,676) = = = (1,676)
At31December 2021 120217128310 A L o8 e 2
Accumulated ESEi -

depreciation:
At 1 January 2020 K2020F1A1H (3,809) (996) (2,179) (1,230) (8,214)
Charge for the year ~ FE X I} (5,646) (1,143) (1,322) (3,547) (11,658)
Written back on & B el

disposals 1,809 - - - 1,809
At 31 December 2020 #2020 12H31H (7,646) (2,139) (3,501) (4,777) (18,063)
Charge for the year ~ FE X I} (8,065) (1,292) (1,135) (5,782) (16,274)
Written back on & D]

disposals 1,676 - - - 1,676
At 31 December 2021 1202112A318 | (140%) .. | Bas) .. (4636) .. (195%9) ... (32,661)
Net book value: SREFE:
At 31 December 2021 A2021F12H31H 8,252 2,752 1,449 7,759 20,212
At 31 December 2020 #2020 12H31H 14,228 3,497 2,117 4,500 24,342
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right-
of-use assets is as follows:

10

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (UARKESIE)

WE - BERRBURENREE
(%)

(b) EREEE

5 0 5 P R B SR TR E A I
T

2021 2020
20215 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

ft et AR®F ARBTT

Properties leased for own use, IZITERAFIEERAZHEE

carried at depreciated cost IES

(i) 8,252 14,228

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

REZAERNEERBE XL EE
DT

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use ERAEESENEER:

assets:

Properties leased for own use ERAMNEEDE 8,065 5,646
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) T E&AEZF B (K:t5(a)) 413 389
Expense relating to short-term leases %2 HiF2 & HY M RI 2 1 3,169 2,514

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
RMB2,089,000 (2020: RMB8,385,000). This amount
included the capitalised lease payments payable under
new tenancy agreements.

REN REFAREEAR
2,089,0007C (20204 : A R ¥&
8,385,0007T) ° i Z BT A ¥ &
FETNENZERNMEEERNK-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTAND 10 ¥% - BRERSREUREBEEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) (&)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) EREEEE)
Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity HEMNReRHERE HEBEND
analysis of lease liabilities and the future cash outflows HASMARBRABZHEEE
arising from leases that are not yet commenced are set ZARRIE & W 2 FE1E D B R
out in notes 16(c) and 18, respectively. 5£16(c) K18 °
(i)  Properties leased for own use (i) EBERAWHEEYH*
The Group has leased a number of properties as AEBEEBHEERZHES
its office and employee dormitory through tenancy :F%%{’Eﬁﬁ#“*&ﬁ,%ﬁ%
agreements. The leases typically run for an initial IR E BB E R2ES5F -
period of 2 to 5 years. Some leases include an T4 f%@%ﬁé%ﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬂéﬁﬁﬁ
option to renew the lease and all terms should be E’M"H EEBMBMBRRELH
renegotiated towards the end of the lease term. AmEEFHE - MAEHEE
None of the leases includes variable lease i’]T’TA—I """"" AHEN R
payments.

138 | CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTAND 10 ¥% - BERSREUREBRE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) E)
(c) Intangible assets (c) BEEE
Software
B4
RMB’000
ARBT T
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2020 720201 81H 4,770
Additions NE 573
At31December2020 . F2020912R31R St
Additions NE 10,403
At31December2021 . F2021F12A31A LS |
Accumulated amortisation: E-4g:
At 1 January 2020 7202041 818 (2,957)
Charge for the year FEIMH (1,258)
At31December2020 . 20209121 (4,215)
Charge for the year FEXMH (1,903)
At31December2021 = . R2020%02A31AR o (6118)
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2021 7K2021F12H431H 9,628
At 31 December 2020 7202012531 H 1,128
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

B Z2021F 12318 I FE (UAREZIE)

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

11 REATINKRE

The following list contains only the particular of two
subsidiaries which principally affects the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary

unless otherwise stated.

TRESINHAKEXRE EEXREHR
TERENMENBE AR KRIESEREH
SRR AR AL S E AR -

Proportion of
ownership interest

FrERERE = L Bl
Place of Registered
Incorporation and paid-up Held by Held by Principal
Name of company and business capital the Company a subsidiary activities
=t BE 3L B 14 FH Bt /58
IR REmE BEEEX HEQAEE RRERFH FEXEWR
Henan Zhongyuan The PRC RMB800,000,000/ - 100% Project
Central China City RMB350,000,000 management
Development Co., Ltd. services
AR R R T AR - 100% i E
ERABMR DA 800,000,0007T, RER®
AR
350,000,0007T
Zhongyuan Central China The PRC RMB10,000,000/— - 100% Project
(Hainan) Management management
Services Co., Ltd. services
hREE (O8m) BER AR - 100% P EE
BHER AR 10,000,0007T, "~ R RR %5
Note: Kt -
The above subsidiaries are PRC limited liability companies. These FRAMBARBTEERAR - ZERFNE S
official names of the entities are in Chinese. The English names are EBAPN - EXEBNEEEBHEAMBREM
translated by management only for the purpose of these financial B 2SR ABWIWARTMEER -

statements as no English names have been registered or available.

* KPMG is not statutory auditor of these subsidiaries.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HREEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

The following list contains an associate of the Group, which is
an unlisted corporate entity, whose quoted market price is not
available:

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (UARKESIE)

12 pA—EER

S

MEXRE

Effective interest
held by the Group

SRTMEES

B AREEN— R
B EMmmmELAAE:

tE R (RIEL

rEERFEENERER
Date and
place of Registered
incorporation/ and paid-up Principal
Name of company establishment capital As at 31 December activities
S =R SR
IR HHEA R i B =N M12831H FEXEWK
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
Biyang Jianheng Real 12 September RMB20,000,000/ 20% 20% Property
Estate Development 2019 RMB20,000,000 development
Co., Ltd. The PRC
WSFEBEREMERE 2019F9H12H° AR P b 2 5
BRAAE FE  20,000,0007T,
AR
20,000,0007T
Note: K s
The entity is a PRC limited liability company. The official name of the ZERBA—MPEERAF -ZEEBEHEEA

entity is in Chinese. The English name is for identification purpose
only.

*

KPMG is not statutory auditor of the associate.

I ECHREE \uéJX)Djl

* E5RE

VA TE KR BUAD o

FHEDF RSP IR
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BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

12 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The associate mentioned above is accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

The information of the associate is as below:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 HN—REBEQTINEZS 2)

EXCPRt eV S A RE R AR AR A B
e E YN L

BEQRNERMT:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBTT

Carrying amount of the associate in the B% A RRGAHHRE

consolidated financial statements KERMEE 2,501 3,010
Amounts of the Group’s share of the AEEEEHEATUT

associate’s HEMWSEE
loss from continuing operations RELEXBER 509 998
Other comprehensive income Hiz2mEmkes - =
Total comprehensive loss ZHEBIEBTE 509 998

13 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

13 HinemEE

2021 2020

202145 20204

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Kzt AR®T ARBTTT

Investment in unlisted securites K E T EHFRIRE (i) 8,076 =
Note: Bt at -

(i) The Group’s investment in unlisted securities represented an
investment in a private equity fund. The Group designated the
unlisted securities at FVOCI (non-recycling), as it does not
intend to dispose of this investment in the foreseeable future.

142 CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HREEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

14 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 14 EHEEREGHARE
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets (a) BHEE
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥ET T
Contract assets ERHEE
Project management service = R ERS 300,500 238,149
All of contract assets are expected to be recovered B EANBEBE—FERIKE -

within one year.

(b) Contract liabilities (b) E&HAE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Contract liabilities BHEE

Project management service B ERERS

— Billings in advance of performance ~ — BB £IBR X 393,249 474,949

2021 ANNUAL REPORT | 143
—EC-FFR



144

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

14 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

14 SHBEREGHEE®)

(b) Contract liabilities (Continued) (b) ERAEBE)
Movements in contract liabilities B EEEE
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
At 1 January M1A1H 474,949 398,784
Decrease in contract liabilities as a BREVFTABLHEEDN
result of recognising revenue during FRAWABBNENEE
the year that was included in the V%
contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year (442,898) (307,639)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result E1Z A1 H EEHEREE R
of billing in advance of project RGEREEHNENEE
management service I e RE 361,198 383,804
At 31 December M12A31H 393,249 474,949

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of billings in
advance of performance and advance payments
received expected to be recognised as income after
more than one year is RMB99,236,000 (2020:
RMB100,146,000). All of the other contract liabilities are
expected to be recognised as income within one year.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

HREERRAF

M2021512 8318 - FBHE R —F%
R AU ANE W E L A8 & T8
Wk &8s AR®99,236,0007T
(20204 : A F£%100,146,0007T) - 78
THEMABEANEBEBERE —FARE

RAWA -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 EZREMEWKRFIE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MaE AR®E T ARETFIT
Trade debtors and bills receivable & 5 & Y3018 & fE W 22 1% 219,932 156,748
Less: allowance for credit losses  J& : {Z & BB & (21,659) (14,779)

Trade debtors and bills receivable, & 5 &Y 38 [ fE W Z %

net of loss allowance (MkREEREE) (a) 198,273 141,969
Amounts due from related parties & Y B8 5t 5 7B 24(c) 27,510 869,213
Other debtors H A e W FRIE (b) 337,758 3,630
Financial assets measured at RESRE AT ENEREE
_EWEHBRIERR e Sl - LUESHZ
Deposits and prepayments B4 RIENFUE 4,609 2,480

568,150 1,017,292
Amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free FEWWEE AR IEAEEE 22 ABEE
and repayable on demand, the details of which are set out in BB R TRIE - H IS E M EE24(c) °
note 24(c).
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be A EE S NEMERZFBEEE—FEA
recovered or recognised as expense within one year or on W e sER AR HIRERKERE-
demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade debtors and bills receivable, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

(a)

15 EZRHEMEBUWRIA )

AR oA

BERSHR REXZAH LMK
BiEREER EHRUFENERRE
RZEREDMTANT -

2021 2020

20214 20204F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBEF T

Within 3 months 3MEAR 126,499 89,414
3 months to 6 months 3{& A =61E A 27,292 25,311
6 months to 1 year 618 A =14 36,574 21,145
over 1 year HBim1F 7,908 6,099
198,273 141,969

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due when the
receivables are recognised. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
debtors and bills receivable are set out in note 22(a).

Other debtors

As at 31 December 2021, other debtors mainly
represented advances to third parties of
RMB317,552,000, which are interest bearing at 15% per
annum, unsecured and expected to be recovered within
one year.

(b)

B 5 RWHIA N EBRERERSE
WHREKI - FREAKEEERR
K;EZRYFERBREBREEZE
B R\ 2 — RN E22(a)

Hfl B R E

MR2021F12 8318 @ H b fE U F 8 =
ZHEE=FRZRARE317,552,000
TG ' 5% SR F F E15% 51 B IR
18 K FEEA R — F R [El ©

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 16 RERFLZEVREMRESR
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EE8
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERAEEYEE :
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T
Cash and cash equivalents in the REMBRRARREEE S
consolidated statement of financial mERTNESERE

position and in the consolidated cash ~ H{E%)
flow statement

1,975,806 384,599

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT



16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations:

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (UARKESIE)

16 RERBAEFEVREMBLR

EEFBR®)

(b)

BB SNEQEETDELECRE
28k

2021 2020
20214 20204F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARMT AREET T
Operating activities REER
Profit before taxation B 3¢ B g A 1,012,878 912,337
Adjustments for: P EE
Depreciation and amortisation 7 & 2 # §4 5(c) 18,177 12,916
Interest income FEUWA 4 (33,043) (5,458)
Equity settled share-based NEREENRDZTEA
payment expenses 5(b) 3,417 1,171
Share of loss of an associate ~ JE{5 — BB & Q& EE 12 509 998
Finance costs A& Ak AR 5(a) 413 389
Changes in working capital: BELESEE:
Increase in contract assets BHREERM (62,351) (57,553)
Increase in trade and other B 5 N CH b e Y SR IA L AN
receivables (76,526) (107,461)
Increase/(decrease) in trade Z 5 Rk H A FER FRIE M,
and other payables CRA) 6,712 (4,582)
(Decrease)/increase in contract & K& & (R 4), /&0
liabilities (81,700) 76,165
Cash generated from REMERE
operations 788,486 828,922
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) MEZBELEZEBZHE

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing activities.

TRAMIETREETHEELE ZA
EIET,\Z%@U(’E%EE%EHFEE%
29) MEEHELECBEREA
Eﬁimh%EZ<<‘jZﬂi;Kﬁi//|L§H17J—/\
rEBzHeRERTOEARME
EEMEAZRERECBE
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BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 RERBAEFEVREMBELR

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EE5R#)
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) METBHELEZEBZHEKRE)
activities (Continued)
Lease
liabilities
HEAE
RMB’000
AREET T
At1January2020  M2020%1B1B LR
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREEENES:
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERENELRIT D (5,125)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEREHNFEHD (389)
Total changes from financing cashflows == BEREAEE®E®E (5,514).
Other Changes: Hih# 5
Increase in lease liabilities from entering RERNFTZLHMHEEMEEMNEESE
into new leases during the year 0 8,385
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) FIEF (HfaE5(a)) 389
Totalotherchanges ... ... AtE®e® 8,774
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 = W2020F12A31AR2021%1818 =y
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREEENES:
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERENELRT S (8,368)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENHERSHNF EBD (413)
Total changes from financing cash flows Eﬂéﬁﬁ‘fﬁ%ﬁ@bﬁgﬁ ____________________________ (8,781)
Other Changes: Hithg s
Increase in lease liabilities from entering REANTLHHEEMEANHEHERE
into new leases during the year 0 2,089
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) MBEFRZ (Hfits5a)) 413
Totalotherchanges ... AtE®ew 2,502
At 31 December 2021 A2021F12H31H 6,073
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 16 RERRLFEYREMRER
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EE8#E)
(Continued)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d)y HEMNRSRHEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases RHEEFARERERNESBUT

comprise the following:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Within operating cash flows REERSHMEAN 4,901 2,885
Within financing cash flows REEREREA 8,781 5,514
13,682 8,399

These amounts relate to the following: ZESEHENTIEE AR
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTTT
Lease rentals paid ENEERS 13,682 8,399
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
#FE2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 BZREMEMNKRE
2021 2020
20214 20204F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE ARMT T ARET T
Amounts due to related parties JE <t BE B 5 3k IR 24(c) 38,856 17,415
Other creditors and accrued HMENRIERESTER
charges 89,402 96,470
128,258 113,885
Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free ENEER T REAERR 2B AEKE
and payable on demand, the details of which are set out in KAER - HFF B E M E24(c) °
note 24(c).
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FFIEB S R EMENFKEBEEGER —FRA
within one year or on demand. HEESIREREE-
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18 LEASE LIABILITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
of the Group’s lease liabilities:

18 HEAE

TRINTAEEHRERBEHRRA D

R

31 December 2021
2021%12831H

31 December 2020
20204128318

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEEE BEHEE =EHEE ®EHE
HRBEE (B NRIRE T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T AR%T ARETT ARBTT
Within 1 year 1F AN 4,464 4,641 7,281 7,750
After 1 year but within —FRERMFEA
2 years 1,609 1,628 3,799 4,012
After 2 years but within MERBRAFNA
5 years - - 1,272 1,324
e e 5,336
6,073 6,269 12,352 13,086
Less: total future interest & : 7R 2 | B 5 5%
expenses R (196) (734)
Present value of lease HEBERE
liabilities 6,073 12,352
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

19 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION

(@) Share options scheme

(i)

Share options granted on 23 May 2017

On 23 May 2017, Central China Real Estate
Limited (“CCRE”) conditionally granted 10,000,000
share options to the Group’s key management, for
the service provided to the Group. The exercise
price is HK$1.764 per share. The share option
scheme was effective from 23 May 2017. Under
the share option schemes, no share option is
vested within first year from the date of grant. 20%
of the share options are vested within the second
year from the date of grant and 40% of the share
options are vested in each of the third and fourth
year from the date of grant. Each option gives the
holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of CCRE. All the options granted will be
exercisable within 10 years after grant date.

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on a binomial lattice
model. The contractual life of the share option is
used as an input into this model. Expectations of
early exercise are incorporated into the binomial
lattice model.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

HREERRAF

19 URBZEFENROZARS

(a)

MBS &l
() R2017%E5523 0184 > BRE

MR2017F5 230 - @ ¥ ERK
MERAR ([BEME]) AR
EEFTEEBABFERGHE
110,000,00017 f& B 4 - LA 22 B
MAEERENRS TR
DITE(B B1.76475 7T ° BB A% #E
sHEIR2017465 823 H#£BIAE
W RIRRE IR S BRE R
BREHBHEBIFRATNETE B
REBHEE _FRATHE
20% HYBE A R A IR I B ER AR
E=FRENFREFAITE
40% - B ERER TIHEA
RE—REENETRBRAE
FloprA B %L BRER AR
RE BB +FRTUITE

PR DA 2 BR 95 HE 8 Pl T 2R AR 7%
MRFETL2E AR ERE
ZAFEFE-FAEEBERZE
R FEMGETDER ZAAE
ERAUGTE-BRESOFH
FH RSP BERS —RE AR
BoRATTEMBEHRE A AL
ZIAA B R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (continued)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

Share options scheme (Continued)

Share options granted on 23 May 2017
(Continueqd)

Fair value of share options and assumption

Fair value at measurement date HK$0.522
Share price HK$1.750
Exercise price HK$1.764
Expected volatility 46%
Option life 10 years
Expected dividends 7%
Risk-free interest rate 1.36%

Share options granted on 12 June 2018

On 12 June 2018, CCRE conditionally granted
3,000,000 share options to Group’s key
management, for services provided to the Group.
The exercise price is HK$4.296 per share. The
share option scheme was effective from 12 June
2018. Under the share option schemes, no share
option is vested within first year from the date of
grant. 20% of the share options are vested within
the second year from the date of grant and 40% of
the share options are vested in each of the third
and fourth year from the date of grant. Each option
gives the holders the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of CCRE. All the options granted will
be exercisable within 10 years after grant date.

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

19 URESGEFNRGBZARS @)

(a) MBRESTE(E)

() R20174%5523 AEHZER

12D
(%)

R 1N FERER

REFER#MZ AFE 052287
BDER 1.750/8 7T
TR B 1.7647% 7T
SEEENA 46%
BREFH 104
TEHR B & 7%
42 [, g 1) 1.36%

(i) R20185E6H12A R HHIERE
R2018F6 A12H » B E M E W
AEBFEEEABBKEH
% 113,000,00017 i A% % - LA 4%
BrRAEERENERSE TR
B 1% 17 5 (B 54.2967%5 T - B A
5T E17 20186 128 i FtA
R IRIBEAREST S BBARE
B ERRBIFATEITE:
RIFEEBRRE-FRAITE
20% B9 HE IR R X I A HA R
FE=FERENFAGFATHE
40% - B EBIRERE THAE A
RE—REEME T BROE
FMemBEERDBRERTR
B BHETFERNT AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

19 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (continued)

(@) Share options scheme (Continued)

(ii)

Share options granted on 12 June 2018
(Continueqd)

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on a binomial lattice
model. The contractual life of the share option is
used as an input into this model. Expectations of
early exercise are incorporated into the binomial
lattice model.

Fair value of share options and assumption

Fair value at measurement date HK$1.566
Share price HK$4.290
Exercise price HK$4.296
Expected volatility 45%
Option life 10 years
Expected dividends 3%
Risk-free interest rate 2.92%

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

HREERRAF

19 URESGEFNRBZARS @

(a)

IBRRESTE (&)
(i) 201846 512 AEH 1 ER
B’ (E)

PR A 38 BRUS M B  E P 28E AR 7%
M RAFETDZE ML ERE
ZRFEFE R L ERE
R FEMETER ZEAE
Rt E-ERESHFH
EHENRRES R AR
BomATENEHEAAL

ZIAA AR -

BIREZ N FERRR

R EBRHZAFE
B B
1TEERS
N
EEFH
RHRE X
&R AR

1.5665% 7T
42907 7T
42967 7T
45%

10%F

3%
2.92%



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

19 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 19 DRESEFNROEXIAXRS @)
TRANSACTION (continued)
(a) Share options scheme (Continued) (a) EBEMRRESTEI(E)

(iii) The number and the weighted average exercise (i) BH¥MERLBRENEER
price of share options granted by CCRE are as IE-FEGITEEUT :
follows:

2021 2020
20215 20205

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
ik B BRE Jill: 22 BB iR
fTiEfE #E 178 HE

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January P A1E BARTTHE 4.30 3,000,000 2.46 10,857,000
Granted during the year RAFRE L - = = =
Exercised during the year RAERTTR - - 1.76 (7,857,000)
Lapsed during the year RAF R KR - - - -

Outstanding at 31 December ~ #MM2A31H fAk
1718 4.30 3,000,000 4.30 3,000,000

Exercisable at 31 December M2 A318 8] FIA

1718 4.30 3,000,000 4.30 1,800,000
The options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had R2021F12A31H MR 1TER
a weighted average exercise price of HKD4.30 BRE ENEEE1TTEEA
(2020: HKD4.30) and a weighted average 4.3078 ot (20204 : 4.30/& 1)
remaining contractual life of 6.45 years (2020: 7.45 RhnkEE R 44 £ FR £6.45
years). F (20204 : 7.454F) ©

2021 ANNUAL REPORT | 155
2o -FFR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

19 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (continued)

(b)

Share award scheme

On 21 December 2020, CCRE, the then parent company
of the Group, announced the share award scheme to
grant restricted shares to its employees, which was
subject to such employees’ acceptance. The share
award scheme will be valid and effective for a period of
10 years.

During January and February 2021, 30 employees of the
Group accepted the share award and subscribed an
aggregate of 21,300,000 restricted shares at total
consideration of HK$61,054,500. The restricted shares
are subject to service and performance vesting
conditions, with 20% of the granted shares vested every
year on and after the first anniversary of the grant date
during the next five years.

Movements in the number of outstanding share award
scheme are as follows:

19 URESGEFNRBZARS @

(b)

IR 40 B2 Bt &l

R20205F128218  REEE B &
DEIEEMEAGRD EEE S M
HEBRTRHIMERE UZEEE
BX AR KK EEE S KB BT
BtFe

R2021F18 k28 REEM30% &
BEXTROHRE TRES &
21,300,000% R il 14 J& = - ¥ (B 4858
7%61,054,500/% 7T © PR il 1% A% = 78 LA
FREMBE BRI BITEKE EXRT
FHRHEREER TEHNE — @R
FREZERAFEHFAITEHE20% ©

W ARTTEE B (0 BN ET 38 B 2 &
LINE

2021

20214

Number of

restricted

share units

PR o] 1

=35

At 1 January M1 A18 -
Granted during the year RARE A 21,300,000
Vested and transferred during the year RAFANBITEREEZE -
Lapsed and cancelled during the year RZN A RN BUH (600,000)
At 31 December ®12A31H 20,700,000

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

20 GEMBRRRFPEMREHR

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) REMBMRRFKDPZEEBIEE -

financial position represents:

Total

et

RMB’000

AREBT T

At 1 January 2020 72020F1 518 52,067
Charged to profit or loss (note 6(a)) BEENH (ffiF6@)) 234,311
Tax paid BAHIE (214,206)
Deemed contribution from the parent company R {EXK B &R A8 EE (5,699)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 7202012 A318 &2021F181H 66,473
Charged to profit or loss (note 6(a)) BB Ak (fit6(a)) 246,350
Tax paid BEAHBIE (265,001)
At 31 December 2021 72021F12A31H 47,822
2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBT T

Representing: 2W|ER:

Current taxation BIEATR 18 47,822 66,473
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 20 FEMBRRKRPOAFH @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets (b) EEBHIEBEE
(i)  Movement of each component of deferred tax () EBEHEASEERNEZE
assets
The components of deferred tax assets recognised RIERIBE ENGRE MBARR
in the consolidated statement of financial position KNER EBRKRERE
and the movements during the year are as follows: AT
Credit loss
allowance
FEEERE
RMB’000
ARBTTT
At 1 January 2020 720201 518 3,087
Credited to profit or loss (note 6(a)) s A= (Mit6(a)) 3,444
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 72020512 H31H 202151418 6,531
Credited to profit or loss (note 6(a)) st AER (AYit6(a)) 3,627
At 31 December 2021 7R2021F12A31H 10,158
(i)  Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (i) #HERBEMRIERZEHE
financial position
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTTT
Representing: 2W|EAR:
Deferred tax assets RIET I E B 10,158 6,531

158 | CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 20
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

As at 31 December 2021, taxable temporary differences
relating to undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,450,319,000 (2020:
RMB737,905,000). No deferred tax liability was
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has determined that it is probable that
these will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21

(@) Share Capital

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (KA RKESIE)

EEMBRRARPNMAEH @)

(c) AEIWELEHERRE :

M2021412 8318 © E KRR &) A B}
BRaAko RKafHEMNERTY
=% A8 AR #1,450,319,0007T
(20204 : A R #737,905,0007T) ° i
L8 DR % (R B i B A FE A
MNREERECHREAE BALA
AEHZSEMBEARNKRERK B
RARERE KA R ARRE A RET

EHRZERH -
BEX - #HERKE
(a) M=

As at 31 December

MM2H31H
2021 2020
20214 2020F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
R & E k] M E B -
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised share capital EERE (M)

(Note (i) 10,000,000,000 100,000,000 38,000,000 380,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

21 BX - RERERE®

(Continued)
(a) Share Capital (Continued) (a) BA&(E)
As at 31 December
MM2B31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RAHAE T8 i E B T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Ordinary shares, issued LTER BBTR
and fully paid: HE:
At 1 January 2021/ R2021€1 818,/
22 October 2020 202010 H22H
(date of incorporation) (PRI A ER) 1 —* 1 =
Capitalisation issue (Note (i) &A1 317
(HtaE (i) 2,967,116,119 24,343 = =
Issuance of shares by initial 8 & X AR &5
public offering (Note (iii)) 1TR& A (B (iii)) 328,172,000 2,692 = =
At 31 December M2A31AH 3,295,288,120 27,035 1 —*

*

The balances represent amounts less than RMB1,000.

Notes:

(i) The Company was incorporated on 22 October 2020 in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability. Upon incorporation, the Company’s
authorised share capital was HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each,
which 1 share was issued and allotted, credited as fully

paid.

On 12 May 2021, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares to HK$100,000,000 divided into

10,000,000,000 shares.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT

* FEERIEIE N AR 1,000 H) £ 58
ffat -

(i) AAFER2020F10A22B8 %M S8
Sk B —REREBR AT -
FMET % ARAREERAE A
380,000/% 7T * 5 £38,000,000/%

of MR EEO0.01E T AR 15 - H AR AR

DEERTT REL I A RS ER R AR

1/\ o

2021558128 - AR BRGETE R
7x #1380,0007% 7t (% 438,000,000
A% A% 1) 3% N Z100,000,0005% 7T
(% /10,000,000,0008%f% 7 )



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

21 BX - RERRKRE @

(Continued)
(a) Share Capital (Continued) (a) BRAE(E)

Notes: (Continued) HiaE - (&)

(i)  Immediately prior to the completion of the initial public (i) EBEHIXARBEZKA AQA
offering, the Company allotted and issued 2,967,116,119 TR EEBE AR R FRA
ordinary shares, credited as fully paid at par value, to = BBk 29,671,161 T (M E R
CCRE by way of capitalisation of HK$29,671,161 # AR #24,343,0007T ) [A] 3 3 b
(equivalent to approximately RMB24,343,000) from the E e B K 3%172,967,116, MR 12 E
share premium account of the Company on the Listing BARIEHM R E @R -

Date.

(i) 328,172,000 ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01 (i) ARARMDABERET EME LS
each were issued at a price of HK$3.00 per ordinary f% & 38 f%3.00/8 T B B 18 2 1T B A%
share upon the listing of the shares of the Company on [E{E0.017%8 7T /) % 33 1% 328,172,000
the Stock Exchange. The proceeds of HK$3,281,720 % - BT 15 3k 783,281,7207% 7T (BN @
(equivalent to approximately RMB2,692,000), representing B HHE R4 ARK2692,0005T)
the par value, were credited to the Company’s share capital. ABRABERRBRA -2 TBRE
The remaining proceeds, net of share issuance expenses, (FOBRER D 2777 2 ) 49949,317,000
of approximately HK$949,317,000 (equivalent to BT (FAE R K ARET78,831,000
approximately RMB778,831,000) were credited to the T ARABARRRRAGERS
Company’s share premium account.

(b) Dividends (b) B2
(i)  Dividend payable to equity shareholders of the () FEEQOZXLGEzIFAAIR
Company attributable to the year 1189 % 82
2021 2020
202145 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREET T
Interim dividend declared and paid 2 & &1 X MBI HIIEE
of HK$8.60 cents (equivalent to A% I B 18.6075 1L
RMB?7.16 cents) per ordinary (FHERARKBT7165)
share (2020: Nil) (20204 : #%) 235,813 =

A final dividend of HK$9.90 cents per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 December 2021 has
been proposed by the Board. The final dividend
proposed after the end of the reporting period has
not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period, which will be distributed out of the
Company’s share premium.

EFEECEZEE2021F12H
MNALEFESRE BBREK
BR9.9078 (Il - AR E HRAE R 1R
EE R RHIR S R RS
SHREE SBRAARAK
R (EETHIK
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Deemed contribution from/distribution to parent
company

For the purpose of this report, deemed contribution from
or distribution to parent company represents the net
amount of assets and liabilities distributed to or
contributed from the parent company for no monetary
consideration during the Reorganisation as further
explained in note 1(b). These assets and liabilities
represent (i) certain assets and liabilities historically
associated with the Listing Business but were retained
by the parent company; and (ii) certain assets and
liabilities historically associated with the Non-Listing
Business but were retained by the Group.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Other capital reserve
The other capital reserve comprises the following:

— In 2017, 2018 and 2021, share options and
restricted shares were granted to certain key
management of the Group by CCRE, which
then indirectly held 100% equity interest of
the Group. The Group recognised a total
expense and a corresponding capital reserve
of RMB 3,417,000 during the year (2020:
RMB1,171,000); and

— Deemed contribution from parent company
as disclosed in note 1(b).

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT

21 BX - RERERE®

(c)

(d)

BIEREBARMIERRIEQAT

DA DK

RAREMS RIERAFRRINE
BB ERT QA D IKEE AN
DIRFERRKETRREANEE
REATNEERBETFE E—F
REZENWMEIb) ZSEEMAE
EBOBAERFTEKEHEEHI D
ABENETEERARE: k(i)BE
I FtTEKABEHAEEREE
WETFTEERARE-

EENEERED

(i)

Htt B #

HENFEEERATSEA:

20174 ~ 20184 22021
FREMERTAEEZ
ETTEEE ABSBIRE
MBS B FEE
¥MEREFEAEEN
100% & #E - F N AEE
R BEREEER
fit 5 A R #3,417,0007T
(20204 : AR#51,171,000
TT) &

BIEREFRRAEEH
TR EE1 () ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

PRC statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined
under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of their registered capital.

The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to make up
previous years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by the issue of new
shares to shareholders in proportion to their
existing shareholdings or by increasing the par
value of the shares currently held by them,
provided that the balance after such issue is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

Treasury shares

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company repurchased its own ordinary shares of
5,682,000 on the Stock Exchange, with an
aggregate consideration paid amounting to
approximately HK$8,605,000 (equivalent to
RMB6,950,000). As at 31 December 2021, the
ordinary shares were repurchased but not yet
cancelled by the Company and were recorded in
“Treasury shares” in the Company’s reserves at the
purchase consideration.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(s).

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

21 BX - RERRKRE @

(d) RENEERENE)

(i) FEEERE

BIEFE (RRE) AEER
FEHEB AR AREPESA
AR EAFH10% N T &
BAEREEETAKREE B
FRFEEHEREFMER
#950% /4 LE °

EREZREBAERRRIRE
ZBIHETT

ZAERBEARERERESF
ERER (mAE) TaEsE
B RIR A RhE L I 1R 18 5 35 1T
AR A SIB N1 IR B A X
A EEERRBRA EET
BRNEBRIIRNEMELRD
25% -

(i) EFR G

REE2021F12A318 £ F
IERNYNEIE A E R Ry il o
3 A%5,582,0000% @ & 1+ 42 &
B %) /8,605,000 7T (HEE K
AR #6,950,0007T) ° 7220214
12A318 AR R M A E fE
ElRZEEBRLN WikE
BHERARAIFRERY BB
TR, e

(iv) ER#E

N HERERERBINELRN
M ERMELENTEIER =
o xS REBIBEW () T
VEETBURERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21 X #ERERE#®

(Continued)
() Movements in components of equity (e) HERBRHEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBZEE=BRR AT RER
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated MEREIRENIGEEREESG R K
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes AREBNEFMAZAHEFRK
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual RSB EEFBRII AT
components of equity between the date of incorporation
and the end of the year are set out below:
Other
Share Share Treasury capital Exchange Accumulated
capital premium shares reserve reserve losses Total
The Company KA [ RAGE EERG HtEFEE EXEE iR it
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mi#  ARBTr ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Balance at 22 October 2020 12020510A22R
(date of incorporation) (EMERLAH)
if] - - - - - - -
Changesinequityfor2020 2020 &%
Loss for the period BhEE - - - - - (578) (578)
Other comprehensive income ~ EIRE 2 E
for the period - - - - 6 - 6
Total comprehensive income for iR 2 A8
the period - - - - 6 (578) (572)
Issuance of ordinary share BTERR - - - - - - =
Deemed capital injection from ~ BfEREREHER
CCRE ik (i) - - - 487,819 - - 487,819
Balance at 31 December 2020 12020512431 &
and 1 January 2021 W1E1R1B &S - - - 487,819 6 (578) 487 247
Changes in equity for 2021 20215 EXEH
Loss for the year EEFE - - - - - (13,953) (13,953)
Other comprehensive income & £ 2l
for the year - - - - (25,955) - (25,955)
Total comprehensive income for  FE2ENEEH
the year - - - - (25955 (13953  (39,008)
Capitalisation issue ERMcE 24,343 (24,343) - - - - -
Issuance of shares by inial ~~ BEFNAREER
public offering 1kt 2,692 778,831 - - - - 781,523
Purchase of own shares BERGRH - - (6,950) - - - (6,950)
Dividend declared in respectof R F 2 RHRE
the current year k& - (235,813) - - - - (235,813)
Balance at 31 December 2021 120215128318
&8 705 518675 (6950 487,819 (25049)  (14531) 986,099
o The balances represent amounts less than RMB1,000. * EHRIBERARE1,000TH 258 -

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Movements in components of equity (Continued)

(i) On 9 November 2020, CCRE extended a loan of
USD74.74 million (equivalent to RMB 500 million) to
Central China Management (Hong Kong) Limited, which
transferred such amount to Central China Real Estate
Group (China) Co., Ltd., on the same date, to complete
the transfer of Zhongyuan Jianye as part of the
Reorganisation. As the fund transferred was solely for the
purpose of the Reorganisation and the Group did not
have an obligation to repay the amount in cash or another
financial asset, it was deemed as a capital contribution
from CCRE to the Company.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so it can continue to provide returns for
equity shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The results of the directors’ review of the Group’s capital
structure are used as a basis for the determination of the
level of dividends, if any, that are declared. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged and was not subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

21 BX - RERRKRE @

() MEDBEHNEE(E)

(i) M2020F11A9H ' ¥ E M)
RIREXE (BB BRAFRM
ER74745EEZT (HERA
RH¥5008 &) i RESE
(BB)ERARRABKZE
HEERTEECESEE (PEH)
BRARAEKREMERESP
FEENER - HRERES
TEREAEL BXEET
BETURSREMEREE
BEZSE WHEMRIERE
HERANAREEE -

() EXEE

AEEEEEANEIEEMNERAE
RASERFERLEMEE N HMmER
BE 5938 8 R IB A B K F B E m MR
BRESBNEBRIL LG EKAE
SRVE - T E 7S B R YR (A (O] e -
R AE MM SRR & R s

AEEEGERRENEEEER
R UEHR RS ERE R ERE
RENEANRME 2 FEG T
YT REBELERANEHFHEE AR
e

EEHAKRBEEARBHNENER
KAEBES KRR (20F)KKF
HE-AEENBREBAESTEA
PRENERE AR E B R 1 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22 BiEMEERSRMTAEATHE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group is not exposed to any significant currency risk or
interest rate risk. Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

(@) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and
contract assets. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with sound credit rating for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. There is no significant concentration of credit
risk within the Group.

(i) Trade receivables and contract assets

There is no significant concentration of credit risk
within the Group. The trade receivables are due
upon the date of the billing. The Group measures
loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets, including bills receivable and trade-related
amount due from related parties, at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

22 EEAMEERSMIAATE

(%)

(a) =ERRE)

(i)  Trade receivables and contract assets () EBZEUFERESHEEE)
(Continueqd)
The following table provides information about the TREREEREERE HE
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade WHRIE (BIEEKEREREK
receivables, including bills receivable and trade RAEs 5 M E S AR ) A
related amount due from related parties: EERREKIEHEEBENE
¥}
2021
20214
Gross Expected
Expected carrying credit loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEE
FEHEEE HBERMEE EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR%T
Within 3 months 3EARN 3.4% 130,898 4,399
3 months to 6 months 318 A =61 A 7.2% 29,410 2,118
6 months to 1 year 61E A =14 21.7% 46,682 10,108
Over 1 year HBIB1F 38.9% 12,942 5,034
219,932 21,659
2020
20204
Gross Expected
Expected carrying credit loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEE
TEHIESE R BEREE B R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTET
Within 3 months 3MEAR 3.3% 93,288 3,079
3 months to 6 months 3fE A =61E A 6.8% 27,158 1,847
6 months to 1 year 61E A =14 23.2% 27,547 6,402
Over 1 year HE1E 36.3% 9,578 3,479
157,571 14,807
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

22 BEEMEENSMIAATE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) FERKEE)
(i)  Trade receivables and contract assets () EBZEUFERSHEEE)
(Continued)
The following table provides information about the TREREEXREERESNE
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for ENEERRLEBEEEIE
contract assets: K E R -
2021 2020
20215 20204
Gross  Expected Gross  Expected
Expected  carrying creditloss  Expected carrying  credit loss
loss rate amount allowance loss rate amount  allowance
B RAEE T BHEE
BEX AKREE HFEAR BRZX AREE BEEG
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARBTR
Contract assets alEE 57% 318,549 18,049 42% 248515 10,366

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believed that no
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

22 EEAMEERSMIAATE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&)
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) FERRE)
(i)  Trade receivables and contract assets () EBZEUFERESHEEE)
(Continueqd)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect FRHEEFEURBRENE
of trade receivables and contract assets during the ER@ANEBERERZESNT
year is as follows:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTTT
Mildewey MRS SN 6560
Impairment losses recognised FRERIREERE
during the year 14,535 13,517
At 31 December M®12A831H 39,708 25,173
(i)  Credit risk arising from other receivables (i) JFERMERFELERRR

In respect of other receivables, the Group monitors
the exposures and manages them based on
historical settlement records and past experience,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

At each reporting date, the Group measures the
expected credit losses of other debtors in following
ways:

MEMEBEFENS  AKE
RIBEE £ B Rk SR E &R
AR B 3 R R AR R AR L EY
RIS ERR N EEARRER -

REREEH AEEZE TS
AR EREMEBHNERER
JEi1g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22 BiEMEERSRMTAEATHE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) FERKEE)
(i)  Credit risk arising from other receivables (i) REERMEKSENEERERE
(Continued) (&)
If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on other ERHRE B H bW FIE
receivables has not increased significantly since 815 B Rz 8 ¥ 18 1 58 DA SR
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss AAR EF - BIAEBIZESE
allowance for other receivables at an amount equal R12EAMBHEEEENS
to 12-month expected credit loss. The Group Bt H MR RIERN BB
measures the loss allowance for other receivables H-BEEMEWRRENEER
at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit % B VR FERARAE LB
loss if the credit risk on other receivables has RELEREEE IXEEIR
increased significantly since initial recognition and HER2HEREEEENS
no impairment loss has occurred. The Group HtE M RN BB R
measures the loss allowance for other receivables H-EBVRBERIARE FEE
at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit WEEE BAEEZEESER
loss if impairment losses has occurred since initial 2HEREEBENSEME
recognition. o fh U R IE B S R B o
The following table provides information about the TREREEAEENEER
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for other B Iz E b B R IE (B 45 FE R
receivables, including non-trade related amount BN T MIEE SRR R TE
due from related parties: HEEEBENER:
2021 2020
20215 20205
Gross  Expected Gross  Expected
Expected  carrying creditloss  Expected carrying  credit loss
loss rate amount allowance loss rate amount  allowance
BAHEE HEEE
BEHEEE 4AREE FERAGE BEERX LZREE  BBEAG
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR%TR ARETT ARBTR
For other receivables that ~ FiiE B AR 5118
the credit risk has not R AR & X
increased significantly LA HAE
since initial recognition WHEm R 0.5% 367,163 1,895 0.1% 872,996 948
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (KA RKESIE)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22 BiXEMREERSRTEATHE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Credit risk arising from other receivables
(Continueqd)

Expected loss rates are based on historical loss
experience. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view
of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of other receivables during the year is as follows:

(%)

(a)

FERR(E)

(i) RERMERSANEERR

(7=
(A8

BHEBERIREE L BIEL
BEH - RFHLEREBAE A
F bR FEE S i Uk &= AT B 1 R
AR~ B AR T B R £ [ Bt e
Yo 3R TE TR B 4 HE A O OB IR O
MBEEZEHZER -

FREEMEYRRAEERENE
BRERESMT

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
Atldanvary BB 48 . 691
Impairment losses recognised during  FRNHER AR EE 18
the year 947 257
At 31 December M12H318 1,895 948
Liquidity risk (b) RENEREBE
Individual operating entities within the Group are 75 B A R Bl A8 '”%‘f‘ﬁ“ﬁ%ﬁﬁ,ﬁi
responsible for their own cash management, including G ER BREARBNEY

the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

&ﬁ&%ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ@mﬁﬁ%%
EXERBREBE TEHBIIRE
E%%@Kiﬁmﬁ! AEES
HfE - AEBH KR EREER
EeHREEEERZNETER #
REG T R AHIR S M MR
BEAEEFUAREBIECREE
S 7 AR B KRR E DA A2 58
AEHRBESHF R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

BEEBRERREMITAQFE

(%)

(b) RENVERER(E)

The following tables show the remaining contractual TRINTAEEETESRBER
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the MEMRNFRE VBB ETD
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are EREFHARMREERERLE
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows and the EAEZTHRFAEEH-
earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
As at 31 December 2021
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
RN F12ANBETHRERRERE
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but Carrying
1 year or on less than lessthan ~ More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
- E —F# mER M2A318
REX BRER BRER LER @zt ZEHE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREBTR ARBTR AR%T:R

Trade and other payables BoREMENTIE 128,258 = = = 128,258 128,258
Lease liabilities HEARE 4,641 1,628 - - 6,269 6,073
132,899 1,628 - - 134,527 134,331
As at 31 December 2020
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
R20206F12ANBEFTHRERA S E
More than More than
Within Tyearbut 2 years but Carrying
1 yearoron less than less than More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
—FR —F ME & M2A31H
REX BRER BRER nER @it LREE

RMBO000  RMBI000
ARBTL ARETR

RMB00O ~ RMBO000  RMBO0O  RMBI000
AREBTL ARETL ARETR ARETR

Trade and other payables B REAMENTE 113,885 = = = 113,885 113,885
Lease liabilities RERE 7,750 4,012 1,324 = 13,086 12,352
121,635 4,012 1,324 = 126,971 126,237
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22 BiEMEERSRMTAEATHE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date;

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available;

AV EE

(i)

BAFEITBZEHMEERA

&
R FEER

TREJRBEEEVHRELE
AIFI3R A FEE RBE
HARAEHAEAEESHITA
MARESR=EER -RE
HEXMAERBABRSR
BRLESZMELNATA:

F-REENFE - RBAE
AENRQTE BUEREE
FEERGFEREERTS T
HIRAERESE

FE_MEEUNFE_REB@AE
SAENATE AMAATHEE
ABREFEE -—RBAER
RRAREREXRTABRE
AB-FABENBAERYL
EMIZEBAE2ENBAE:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22 BiXEMREERSRTEATHE

(Continued)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&
(c) Fair value measurement (Continued) (c) AFEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair BAFHEHTEZEHEERE
value (Continued) & (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEER (E)
Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using FE=HEE:-FAERTAH
significant unobservable inputs. R ABEFEAFE
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2021 categorised into
DAFEFER2021F12AMB S EAR
Fair value at
31 December
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R2021%
12A31H2
AYE £-% £ E=R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®Tn AR¥Trn AR¥Tx
Recurring fair value REEQALETE
measurements
Other financial assets: AthEMEE -
— Investment in unlisted securies — &k F B HHHE 8,076 = 8,076 =

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements

The fair value of investment in unlisted securities in
Level 2 is determined by reference to recent
transaction price.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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24

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2021 and
2020 not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (KA RKESIE)

23 RiE

720214 }2020512 4318 R B 5
RAFTIROARBITEAAELT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETx ARET T

Contracted for 23] 4) 3,253 3,494

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

Name of party
)bt

24 EXFEABAXS

(a) EAMLBWKREHRBE

Relationship with the Group
BAKEEF

Central China Real Estate Limited (“CCRE”")
(together with its subsidiaries, “CCRE Group”)

Company controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholder, Mr. Wu Po

Sum
BEMEROARLAR (TREME]) CEREMBRGF R AR AR AR R AR TR AR S8 AR 45 1l 2
mEIEEMESRE]) NC]
Central China New Life Limited (“Central China New Life”) Company controlled by the ultimate
(together with its subsidiaries, “Central China New Life Group”) controlling shareholder, Mr. Wu Po
Sum
BEFETERAR ([EEHLE]) CEREMBAR PR AR AT IR AR R AR R AR S AR 45 1 2
i REREEER]) NC]

Biyang Jianheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Biyang Jianheng”)
WEFREEEHEREARAR (DMEBEE])

Zhoukou Lvcheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(“Zhoukou Lvcheng”)
AR EMERZEAR AR ([EOA&H])

Xiangcheng Zhiteng Urban Construction Co., Ltd.
(“Xiangcheng Zhiteng”)
EWERATERERAR ([EHER])

An associate of the Group

ZAN S0k N

A joint venture of CCRE Group

EEMESENS LR

A joint venture of CCRE Group

REMESENSERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

Name of party
B S B8

24 EXEEAFRS 2

(a)

BB B EEERRER(E)

Relationship with the Group
BEAEERAR

Qingfeng Jianhong Urban Development Co., Ltd.
(“Qingfeng Jianhong”)

BEREHTERARAR (NFEER])

Shengiu Forest Peninsula Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Shengiu Forest Peninsula”)

AEBRHEMELEBERZERAR (DLEHRMES])

Zhongyu Guoxin Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Zhongyu Guoxin”)
hEHEEEERAT ([HEEE])

Linzhou Zhongji Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(“Linzhou Zhongji”)
MMEREEREZEBR AR ([MMER])

Shanggiu Hesheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Shanggiu Hesheng”)
BMEEREXARAR ([MEE®E])

Taigian Jiandong Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Taigian Jiandong”)
BRIRREXBRAF ([AAIER])

A joint venture of CCRE Group

BEMESRENARZEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

BEMESENSEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

EEMESENAZERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

BEMESRENAZERE

An associate of CCRE Group

EEMESENBE AT

An associate of CCRE Group

EEMESENEE QT

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT



24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

Significant related party transactions

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following related party
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2021.

(b)

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (KA RKESIE)

24 EXEBARS ®)

EXBBMLRS

BRRGEBRREMESIRED
BT ERIN NE B R E E20214F
12ﬁ31H¢¢ﬁﬁ@§ﬁﬁF‘aﬁW§TjL}{
T &2

2021 2020
20214 20204
The Group rEEH Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaF AR%T ARBT T
Provision of project REEHERERS:
management service to:
CCRE Group and its joint BEMWESERHEEGED
ventures and associates EYS3i A I/NG] 830 121,247
An associate —HEBERT 4,111 3,068
Licensing fee to CCRE Group ZEXiESENHFIER (i) 8,750 -
Advance to: BT
CCRE Group BEMEEH 150,000 772,600
An associate — & AT = 2,800
Repayment from: BRKE:
CCRE Group EEMES 993,220 670,000
Repayment to: BRT:
CCRE Group and its joint EEMES )32 g
ventures and associates EYNEi -k I/NE] - 52,119
Dividend to: RAREF:
CCRE Group EEMAES - 470,000
Receiving other miscellaneous HEH S E SN H b 51E
services from related parties R 18,574 7,542
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

Note:

(i)

Licensing fee

On 13 May 2021, the Company and CCRE entered into a
license agreement (the ““Trademark Licensing
Agreement”) in respect of “3 3" (“Jianye”) and related
trademarks for an initial term of ten years after the listing
date. Pursuant to the license agreement, licensing fees
are charged by CCRE to the Company since 31 May
2021, the listing date of the Company in the following
manner: (i) for the first three years: RMB15,000,000 per
annum; (ii) for the fourth to sixth year: RMB20,000,000
per annum; (iii) for the seventh to tenth year:
RMB25,000,000 per annum, if applicable, calculated on a
pro-rated basis for less than an entire calendar year.
Neither CCRE nor the Group has the right to unilaterally
terminate the Trademark Licensing Agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
accrued licensing fee of RMB8,750,000 (2020: RMB Nil)
pursuant to the license agreement, which was included in
“other operating expenses” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The abovementioned licensing fee has
not been paid as at 31 December 2021.

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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24 EXEEAFRS 2

EXRBBMLERZ (&)

Hisz

(i)

HUEA

M20214658138 - R AT HZE
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Rl e ([ iHaEl) - ¥1E
HR A ETHBEN+F - RIE
Al sk - M E 1] §202145 731
B(ARE EMBH)BEBAT
FRMAA B UERFFAI B A - (i) A/l
=& §4 AR%15,000,0007T : (i)
EFNEFEEERNFE - FEFARE
20,000,0007T: (i) EtFEF +
& g & AR #25,000,0007T 5 T
W ETEEF BEATTEGIR
LEBIETE - E R AL E S E
TEE 5 E AR L RIAR AT AT 155 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
St 75 R 2R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARKEZE)

24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 24 EXEBARS #)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Balance with related parties (c) EEREEEER MR
2021 2020
The Group rEH 202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Amounts due from: PE R FRIE
Trade related: B8
An associate of CCRE Group BEMESEMNBE QT - 795
Non-trade related: FHE 1A -
CCRE Group and its joint ventures and 23 = £ B & EHER
associates i B/NE] 2,187 842,794
An associate — B & N A 25,323 25,324
Others HAh - 300
27,510 868,418
27,510 869,213
Amounts due to: PEAFRIE
Trade related: E S8
Central China New Life Group BEMEES 28,799 15,718
CCRE Group BEMESE 8,750 =
Non-trade related: FHEZIEE -
CCRE Group BEMES 1,307 1,697
38,856 17,415
Contract assets from related parties: BB S S HNEE:
Trade related: E 5186
CCRE Group and its joint ventures and ZEMEEENRHEGLELER
associates Fl/N] - 27,285
An associate —fAE & A A 4,844 410
Contract liabilities to related parties: BEEt S SN EE:
Trade related: E 5186
CCRE Group and its joint ventures and ZEMEEENREGLELER
associates EE /N 16,580 7,888
Lease liabilities to CCRE Group HEXHESENHERR 3,995 7,434
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

B Z2021F 12318 IEFE (UAREZIE)

24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Balance with related parties (Continued) (c)

All the balances are unsecured, interest-free and payable

on demand.

Trade-related amounts due from related parties are in
relation to provision of project management services to
related parties. Trade-related amounts due to Central
China New Life Group include collection of service fees
on behalf of Jianye Property Management for its

24 EXEEAFRS 2

At

ERRARS 5 MK ER (48)

BEGRERR 28 HEARER

e B 2 B 5 HR IR JI B A
RETRESHERRREER &
NEXHFLEEEE 2B HHEBNKEA
BREALEAASEEFPRHEME
RERBMREZXDEE L KRR

provision of property management services to the &
customers of the Group.
2021 2020
The Company KA F] 20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTTT
Amount due from subsidiaries FE Ut B A T RKIE
— non-current —ERH 467,455 487,819
— current —RH 294,980 =
Amount due from CCRE Group BlWEEihESEERE 4,807 =
Lease liabilities to CCRE Group HEXHWESEENEEEE 1,332 -

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Key management compensation

Compensations for key management other than those
for directors as disclosed in note 7 is set out below:

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)

24 EXKEEAERS

(d)

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (KA RKESIE)

(%)

FTEEEASHM

BRERBERNMEICETHFMIEEE
EABFHBESIMT

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT

Salaries and other short-term employee & & £ th 55 Hi (& B 48 7
benefits 11,545 13,130
Equity settled share-based payment PARE 25 45 B O AR 1D S 924 259
Total Ak 12,469 13,389

Total remuneration is included in “personnel cost” (see
note 5(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of rendering
service to, receiving services and acquiring equity
interests from entities controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholder above constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in sections “Connected transactions” and
“Continuing connected transactions” of the Directors’
Report except those transactions which are exempt from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as they are below the de minimis threshold under
Rule 14A.76(1).

(e)

FENEsET ATABRA] (RE s
5(b)) °

EEE
13

REZMEEz LTRAZER

W R b S AR IR IR R T A B RS
RERY BXEEERNRSERE
EHAERBWERENERALTRS
B ETRBEI4AZERERBER
SRFBEBER S - ETRAE14A
ERTHRBENIRESSRE
[BER S| R[FERERS | WET
MR R B 14A.76(1) 1§ H) SRR AZ %
MmERRET ETHRNE14AERH
BHTENZ GBI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
L F2021F12A31H IEFE (UARESE)

25 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 25 DTEEBEBFERRR

FINANCIAL POSITION
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE AR%T T AREFTT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment LER G 1,979 13
Interests in subsidiaries NGO F 24(c) 467,455 487,819
Amount due from related parties JiE 5 R Bk O SR IE 24(c) 4,807 =
Other financial assets EtwemEE 13 8,076 =
482,317 487,832
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from subsidiaries JE AT B B8 A R 3R 3B 24(c) 294,980 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 210,294 =
505,274 -
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables E A fE T RKIR 160 585
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,059 =
1,219 585
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (&) FE 504,055 (585)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBAEE 986,372 487,247
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 273 —
NET assets EEFE 986,099 487,247
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR&FE
Share capital [ 21(a) 27,035 =
Reserves R 21(d) 959,064 487,247
TOTAL EQUITY M AR 986,099 487,247
L The balance represents amount less than RMB1,000. . HRBER ARY1,0007TH) & 58 -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20226315 BES S i £ R T

15 March 2022. 2% o
Hu Bing Ma Xiaoteng
Bk B
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE

182 | CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FREEBRAT



26

27

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a
final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 21(b).

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

BARSERAR P EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi)
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27

BZE2021F12A318 IFFE (KA RKESIE)

BERRFERBEER

RFERR EFEZREFRIKE - B
SEIS PR FE21(b) 3 55 -

HZE20215F12A31BLLEERE
EME R RENAERTA - #
ZAIRBREUREENEE

HEAMBRETEAHE L BHSH
BAE D EHENEE2021F128318 IEF
JE 18 AR A2 Ak B 37 4 B AR B 7S R 3R BR 4 B0 2K
BIER] A R — BIFT E B BB B 15 R & 28
BATHRRBR A4 BIEA T Al gL EE AR £ E
@&

Effective for

accounting

periods

beginning on

or after

RT3 B

o2 BB

EHBEEXN

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
(BRI REER) B35 (155]) - HREREZ 202241 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
(CEEGER) $165% (1BR]) - W%  BiE KR - BUERLFRIHFris 8 2022F1A1H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
AR FI7H (BF]) - BFRMEH— BITEHBKA 202261 H1H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle ‘ 1 January 2022
(BEMBHREER) 20185F £2020F B H v FE B 20221 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
(BEGER) 15 (BFIAR)  HEESHBRBKIFRE 2023F1H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting policies 1 January 2023
(BEGER) F15 R (FEEVBREER) F25 2 HEKE 20231 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023
(CBEABETER) FE89% S5 A8 EE 2023%F1H1H

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single

transaction

(BRGTER) $125% E—XZMELHALERREIHBELHA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

1 January 2023

20231 H1H

AEELENGERSERBBEVRER
HREENTE AKE B AR RAZ
FERT AN~ #R] £ R K i B A ARl RE # 4%
EMBHRRENEATE -
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MBERBE

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets, liabilities and equity of the Group for the last four financial

years prepared on the basis as hereunder stated is as set out below:  #fZ &5 20T :

ARB RE A RIRBAN RS At
SESOINEMRFERAEE BEMEDN

) 5 B AR L O X

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS A
2021 2020 2019 2018
20214 20204 20194F 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREBTT
Revenue WA 1,301,449 1,152,082 1,028,995 676,399
Profit before taxation B 7 A1 4 ) 1,012,878 912,337 858,224 544,338
Income tax IS (242,723) (230,867) (217,127) (140,461)
Profit for the year FERA 770,155 681,470 641,097 403,877
Attributable to: AT FEqL -
Equity shareholders of the RRQ R F
Company BA 770,155 681,470 641,097 403,877
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EBEE - BERES
2021 2020 2019 2018
20214 20204 20194F 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT AR®TT ARETT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 50,575 35,011 33,277 5,278
Current assets mEEE 2,844,456 1,640,040 1,343,960 1,193,244
Total assets EEHE 2,895,031 1,675,051 1,377,237 1,198,522
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities mEBE (573,793) (662,588) (625,978) (522,146)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (1,609) (5,071) (4,528) =
Total liabilities BEEAE (575,402) (667,659) (630,506) (522,146)
Net assets FEE 2,319,629 1,007,392 746,731 676,376
Equity s
Total equity attributable to equity ~ AN A FIEREFAE A
shareholders of the Company E(L e AR RE 2,319,629 1,007,392 746,731 676,376
Total equity EEAE 2,319,629 1,007,392 746,731 676,376

CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HREEERAT
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